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MUGC GS Cayman Fund - GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
2010 10

MUGC GS Cayman Fund

2025 USD Class AUD
Class JPY Class Hedged
USD Class (Hedged)

23 25
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Mitsubishi UFJ
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Banking (Luxembourg)
S.A.

2010 10 2012
10 2015 27 2016
10

Brown Brothers
Harriman Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

MUFG 2014 31
S.A.

MUFG Lux Management

Company S.A. 2020 10

2008 11

(Brown Brothers Harriman
& Co.)

2017 10
2017 14

Goldman Sachs Asset
Management
International

2017 10 2017
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Yarra Funds Management
Limited
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1915 10
1974 11 1915 10
2025
187,117,965.90 289
5,051,655 37.04
1974 11
2006
2007
2016
UFJ S.A.

2025

5,051,655 100.00
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2025
680,738,792.16 97.04
20,780,628.67 2.96
701,519,420.83
( 67,255 ) 100.00
2025
1,056,000,843.35 157.01
434,483 ,640.06 64.60
58,558 ,302.80 8.71
32,784,783.00 4.87
17,361,118.12 2.58
17,234 ,885.00 2.56
7.541,025.00 1.12
4,574,940.00 0.68
71,383,819.73 10.61
18,467 ,858.12 2.75
1,045,826,481.84 155.50
672,564 ,733.34
( 64,479 ) 100.00
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2025
Goldman Sachs Institutional Funds, plc -
1 Goldman Sachs Australia Enhanced Income Fund 3,245,786.45 183.00 593,977,840.88 209.73 680,738,792.16 97.04
2025
1 | Ampol Ltd FRN 12/09/80 2080 12 8.0397 | 17,030,000.00 1.03| 17,475,801.18 1.02 | 17,394,612.30 2.59
2 ’igfgg}sge”"ces Holdings Pty Ltd FRN 2080 10 7.4875 | 15,800,000.00 1.00 | 15,795,339.45 1.01| 16,013,300.00 2.38
3 | credit Agricole SA VAR 05/29/34 2034 29 4.2000 | 17,000,000.00 1.03| 17,582,335.91 0.94 | 15,937,840.00 2.37
4 | National Australia Bank Ltd FRN 10/19/73 2173 10 19 8.3308 | 15,718,000.00 1.05 | 16,430,684.04 1.01| 15,892,155.44 2.36
5 | Cooperatieve Rabobank UA VAR 10/26/32 2032 10 26 7.0740 | 14,000,000.00 1.00 | 14,000,000.00 1.05 | 14,636,860.00 2.18
6 ngfg;%g"” Life Australasia Ltd FRN 2035 12 7.7397 | 14,120,000.00 1.01| 14,314,273.50 1.01| 14,326,858.00 2.13
7 | Macquarie Bank Ltd FRN 03/01/34 2034 6.3860 | 13,700,000.00 1.00 | 13,751,638.89 1.01| 13,899,472.00 2.07
1fi1 1 1 ()
8 gg%;;gl'\'at'ona' Finance Pty Ltd 3.8% 2031 3.8000 | 15,000,000.00 1.00 | 14,955,158.95 0.88 | 13,150,500.00 1.96
9 g;f;gj‘;f & New Zealand Banking Gr VAR 2034 20 6.4050 | 12,500,000.00 1.00 | 12,500,000.00 1.04 | 13,053,500.00 1.94
10 | Nufarm Finance NZ Ltd FRN 04/16/73 2173 16 8.5081 | 14,088,000.00 0.85 | 11,964,006.60 0.91| 12,771,988.12 1.90
11 | LLOYDS BANKING GROUP PLC VAR 08/31/33 2033 31 7.0860 [ 12,000,000.00 1.00 | 12,000,000.00 1.05 | 12,616,680.00 1.88
12 | ANZ Holdings New Zealand Ltd FRN 10/18/73 2173 10 18 7.2831 | 10,000,000.00 1.00 | 10,036,759.70 1.04 | 10,355,100.00 1.54
13 | Societe Generale SA 5% 05/19/27 2027 19 5.0000 [ 9,844,000.00 1.03| 10,140,972.17 0.99 | 9,745,067.80 1.45
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14 | National Australia Bank Ltd VAR 06/06/39 2039 6.3420 [ 9,000,000.00 1.00| 9,000,000.00 1.05| 9,418,320.00 1.40
15 | challenger Life Co Ltd VAR 09/16/37 2037 16 7.1860 | 9,000,000.00 1.00| 8,985,836.19 1.04| 9,395,010.00 1.40
16 | HSBC HOLDINGS PLC VAR 03/21/34 2034 21 6.2110 [  9,000,000.00 1.00| 8,965,366.24 1.02| 9,218,970.00 1.37
17 | WESTPAC BANKING CORP VAR 11/15/38 2038 11 15 7.1990 | 8,000,000.00 1.00| 8,000,000.00 1.11| 8,843,840.00 1.31
18 | AP Bank Ltd FRN 10/07/32 2032 10 9.0277 | 8,000,000.00 1.00| 8,000,000.00 1.04| 8,354,800.00 1.24
19 ggTTg%”ga'th Bank of Australia VAR 2038 15 6.7040 |  7,500,000.00 1.00| 7,500,000.00 1.07| 8,024,850.00 1.19
20 | Peet Ltd 8.5% 09/30/29 2029 30 8.5000 [ 7,650,000.00 1.02| 7,818,797.01 1.03| 7,896,406.50 1.17
21 | Bank of Queensland Ltd FRN 05/19/32 2032 19 6.1735 |  7,800,000.00 0.98 | 7,637,740.10 1.01| 7,867,314.00 1.17
g | Commonwealth Bank of Australia VAR 2039 11 27 6.1520 | 7,500,000.00 1.00 | 7,500,000.00 1.03| 7,697,250.00 1.14
11/27/39
23 | LLOYDS BANKING GROUP PLC FRN 08/29/34 2034 29 6.6078 |  7,500,000.00 1.00| 7,500,000.00 1.01| 7,610,850.00 1.13
24 | BNP Paribas SA FRN 08/23/34 2034 23 6.5651 | 7,500,000.00 1.00| 7,500,000.00 1.01| 7,544,700.00 1.12
25 | Blue owl Credit Income Corp 6.5% 10/23/27 2027 10 23 6.5000 [ 7,500,000.00 1.00| 7,496,868.22 1.01| 7,541,025.00 1.12
(2025
1 | varra A$ Cash Reserves Fund 18,467,858.12 1.00 18,467,858.12 1.00 18,467,858.12 2.75
(2025
1 | 90-DAY BANK BILL Jun25 2025 12 433,669,248.72 433,881,100.56 64.51
2 | 90-DAY BANK BILL Mar25 2025 13 432,605,204.62 432,626,324.83 64.32
3 | 90-DAY BANK BILL Sep25 2025 1 217,883,250.20 218,016,350.20 32.42
4 | AUST 3YR BOND FUT War25 2025 17 32,918,663.01 32,801,363.52 4.88
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2024 2025
2015 59,912,168.14 9,252,236,126 5.98 923
2016 56,970,642.30 8,797,976,290 6.40 988
2017 30,990,659.53 4,785,887,551 6.59 1,018
2018 28,831,434.17 4,452,438,379 6.03 931
2019 48,446,307.21 7,481,563,222 5.48 846
2020 49,788,786.22 7,688,882,256 5.35 826
2021 47,417,571.77 7,322,695,608 5.40 834
10
2022 37,544,885.38 5,798,056,649 4.62 713
11
2023 37,344,986.13 5,767,186,208 4.65 718
12
2024 43,795,056.67 6,763,270,602 5.25 811
2024 36,546,356.63 5,643,853,854 4.83 746
36,416,436.89 5,623,790,349 4.86 751
35,938,459.93 5,549,976,367 4.82 744
40,244,635.26 6,214,979,023 4.96 766
41,144,905.31 6,354,007,727 4.99 771
41,009,032.85 6,333,024,943 4.92 760
42,834,971.12 6,615,004,590 5.12 791
43,795,056.67 6,763,270,602 5.25 811
10 43,071,110.13 6,651,471,537 4.97 768
11 42,713,558.10 6,596,254,777 4.95 764
12 41,724,744.97 6,443,552,366 4.74 732
2025 41,329,760.80 6,382,554,960 4.76 735
2012 26
2018 28
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2015 164,865,354.37 | 15,805,641,523 9.10 872

2016 143,729,212.38 | 13,779,319,501 8.90 853

2017 117,232,957.90 |  11,239,123,674 9.00 863

2018 171,859,373.26 |  16,476,158,114 8.94 857

2019 568,908,701.96 |  54,541,277,257 8.78 842

2020 594,705,892.55 |  57,014,453,919 8.10 777

2021 456,149,292.13 |  43,731,032,637 7.99 766

20;2 323,125,888.30 |  30,978,078,911 7.67 735

20;% 288.,140,229.75 | 27.624,003,826 7.78 746

. 296,080,224.94 |  28,385,211,165 8.18 784
2024

2024 303,950,184.79 |  29,139,704,216 7.98 765

301,763,458.05 |  28,930,062,723 8.03 770

301,132,464.47 |  28,869,569,369 8.00 767

301,704,402.63 |  28,924,401,080 8.04 7

296,335,266.90 |  28,409,662,038 8.06 773

297.614,785.00 |  28,532,329,438 8.14 780

295,072,154.67 |  28,288,567,468 8.15 781

206,080,224.94 |  28,385,211,165 8.18 784

10 297.759,332.35 |  28,546,187,192 8.20 786

11 301,884,735.29 |  28,941,689,572 8.23 789

12 304,089,882.20 |  29,153,097,007 8.26 792

2025 306,521,350.49 |  29,386,201,871 8.28 794
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2015 10,775,093,560 9,337
2016 5.360,559,728 9,138
2017 4.603,090,032 9,271
2018 4,252.511,012 9,244
2019 4,930,245, 467 9,134
2020 3,913,809,943 8,602
2021 5.677,136,630 8,733

10 4,371,238,255 8,386
2022 ’ ’ ’ ’

11 4,117 545,097 8.216
2023 ’ ’ ’ ’

12 3,167,629,843 8,257
2024 .167,629, '
2024 3.801,481,039 8,272

3,756,695, 131 8,288

3,481,348,722 8,228

3,372,029, 207 8,232

3,315,358,529 8,221

3,184,864 653 8,278

3,192,451,837 8,258

3,167,629,843 8,257

10 3,083,170,472 8,249
11 2.994,140,890 8,246
12 2.,911,704,672 8,237
2025 2,933,092,074 8,213
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2018 104,800,963.23 16,184,412,752 10.16 1,569
2019 331,712,144.29 51,226,306,443 10.24 1,581
2020 347,746,052.51 53,702,422,889 9.72 1,501
2021 301,439,921.49 46,551,367,076 9.81 1,515
20;2 191,752,803.56 29,612,385,454 9.50 1,467
20;; 170,450,184.94 26,322,622,060 9.76 1,507
20;2 174,019,797.03 26,873,877,255 10.37 1,601
2024 157,083,072.03 24,258,338,814 10.06 1,554
158,761,603.55 24,517,554,436 10.13 1,564

161,106,546.22 24,879,683,933 10.11 1,561

160,590,165.32 24,799,939,230 10.16 1,569

162,813,143.64 25,143,233,772 10.19 1,574

174,208,182.55 26,902,969,631 10.30 1,591

170,624,593.25 26,349,555,936 10.33 1,595

174,019,797.03 26,873,877,255 10.37 1,601

10 174,646,839.28 26,970,711,390 10.40 1,606

11 178,637,564.23 27,586,999,044 10.44 1,612

12 183,866,573.52 28,394,514,949 10.48 1,618

2025 186,108,781.00 28,740,779,050 10.50 1,622
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2014 10 0.760 117
2015
2015 10 0.360 56
2016
2016 10 0.360 56
2017
2017 10 0.360 56
2018
2018 10 0.360 56
2019
2019 10 0.320 49
2020
2020 10 0.240 37
2021
10
2021 10 0.195 30
2022
11
2022 10 0.180 28
2023
12
2023 10 0.180 28
2024
2024 0.015 2
0.015 2
0.015 2
0.015 2
0.015 2
0.015 2
0.015 2
0.015 2
10 0.015 2
11 0.015 2
12 0.015 2
2025 0.015 2
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2014 10 0.840 81
2015
2015 10 0.540 52
2016
2016 10 0.480 46
2017
2017 10 0.480 46
2018
2018 10 0.480 46
2019
2019 10 0.480 46
2020
2020 10 0.480 46
2021
10
2021 10 0.300 29
2022
11
2022 10 0.240 23
2023
12
2023 10 0.240 23
2024
2024 0.020 2
0.020 2
0.020 2
0.020 2
0.020 2
0.020 2
0.020 2
0.020 2
10 0.020 2
11 0.020 2
12 0.020 2
2025 0.020 2
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2014 10 480
2015
2015 10 280
2016
2016 10 240
2017
2017 10 240
2018
2018 10 240
2019
2019 10 240
2020
2020 10 240
2021
10
2021 10 240
2022
11
2022 10 240
2023
12
2023 10 240
2024
2024 20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
10 20
11 20
12 20
2025 20
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2018 28 0.150 23
2018
2018 10 0.360 56
2019
2019 10 0.360 56
2020
2020 10 0.360 56
2021
10
2021 10 0.315 49
2022
11
2022 10 0.300 46
2023
12
2023 10 0.300 46
2024
2024 0.025 4
0.025 4
0.025 4
0.025 4
0.025 4
0.025 4
0.025 4
0.025 4
10 0.025 4
11 0.025 4
12 0.025 4
2025 0.025 4
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2014 10 18.20
2015

2015 10 13.04
2016

2016 10 8.59
2017

2017 10 3.03
2018

2018 10 3.15
2019

2019 10 3.47
2020

2020 10 5.42
2021

10
2021 10 10.83
2022

11
2022 10 4.55
2023

12
2023 10 16.77
2024

x 100

10.00
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2014 10 0.61
2015

2015 10 3.74
2016

2016 10 6.52
2017

2017 10 4.67
2018

2018 10 3.58
2019

2019 10 2.28
2020

2020 10 4.57
2021

10
2021 10 0.25
2022

11
2022 10 4.56
2023

12
2023 10 8.23
2024
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2014 10 1.94
2015

2015 10 0.87
2016

2016 10 4.08
2017

2017 10 2.30
2018

2018 10 1.41
2019

2019 10 3.20
2020

2020 10 4.31
2021

10
2021 10 1.23
2022

11
2022 10 0.83
2023

12
2023 10 3.42
2024
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2018 28 3.10
2018

2018 10 4.33
2019

2019 10 1.56
2020

2020 10 4.63
2021

10
2021 10 0.05
2022

11
2022 10 5.89
2023

12
2023 10 9.32
2024
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2014 10 7,083,728.95 3,106,480.39 10,012,346.40
2015 (7,083,728.95) (3,106,480.39) (10,012,346.40)
2015 10 2,126,238.83 3,240,229.78 8,898,355.45
2016 (2,126,238.83) (3,240,229.78) (8,898,355.45)
2016 10 1,300,852.71 5,499,332.83 4,699,875.33
2017 (1,300,852.71) (5,499,332.83) (4,699,875.33)
2017 10 1,608,479.14 1,524,040.01 4,784,314.46
2018 (1,608,479.14) (1,524,040.01) (4,784,314.46)
2018 10 5,286,066.20 1,223,293.90 8,847,086.76
2019 (5,286,066.20) (1,223,293.90) (8,847,086.76)
2019 10 4,022,685.66 3,563,298.97 9,306,473.45
2020 (4,022,685.66) (3,563,298.97) (9,306,473.45)
2020 10 5,983,505.31 6,514,109.23 8,775,869.53
2021 (5,983,505.31) (6,514,109.23) (8,775,869.53)
20210 10 2,880,885.60 3,532,312.77 8,124,442 .36
2022 (2,880,885.60) (3,532,312.77) (8,124,442 .36)
20221 10 2,200,852.90 2,287,562.94 8,037,732.32
2023 (2,200,852.90) (2,287,562.94) (8,037,732.32)
202;2 10 2,285,699.57 1,982,872.32 8,340,559.57
(2,285,699.57) (1,982,872.32) (8,340,559.57)

2024
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2014 10 8,194,864.28 3,241,215.43 18,110,895.05
o (8,194,864.28) (3,241,215.43) (18,110,895.05)
2015 10 2,541,868.77 4,511,290.73 16,141,473.09
2016 (2,541,868.77) (4,511,290.73) (16,141,473.09)
2016 10 2,252,957.23 5,373,104.64 13,021,325.68
2017 (2,252,957.23) (5,373,104.64) (13,021,325.68)
2017 10 8,936,500.50 2,726,972.47 19,230,853.71
5018 (8,936,500.50) (2,726,972.47) (19,230,853.71)
2018 10 47,528,291.15 1,985,509.24 64,773,635.62
2019 (47,528,291.15) (1,985,509.24) (64,773,635.62)
2019 10 23,448,277.71 14,846,546.86 73,375,366.47
5020 (23,448,277.71) (14,846,546 .86) (73,375,366.47)
2020 10 14,176,463.78 30,441,499.00 57,110,331.25
2021 (14,176,463.78) | (30,441,499.00) | (57,110,331.25)
20210 10 7,054,471.36 22,012,515.77 42,152,286.84
2022 (7,054,471.36) (22,012,515.77) (42,152,286.84)
20221 10 3,513,777.90 8,621,385.05 37,044,679.69
2023 (3,513,777.90) (8,621,385.05) (37,044,679.69)
202;2 10 6,513,866.75 7,362,815.24 36,195,731.20

(6,513,866.75) (7,362,815.24) (36,195,731.20)

2024
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2014 10 778,849.13 442,321.19 1,154,060.29
2015 (778,849.13) (442,321.19) (1,154,060.29)
2015 10 44,419.21 611,864.54 586,614.96
2016 (44,419.21) (611,864.54) (586,614.96)
2016 10 120,877.06 210,985.11 496,506.91
2017 (120,877.06) (210,985.11) (496,506.91)
2017 10 91,999.35 128,484 .98 460,021.28
2018 (91,999.35) (128,484.98) (460,021.28)
2018 10 164,999.42 85,245.92 539,774.78
2019 (164,999.42) (85,245.92) (539,774.78)
2019 10 72,611.33 157,403.27 454,982.84
2020 (72,611.33) (157,403.27) (454,982.84)
2020 10 323,966.96 128,902.01 650,047.79
2021 (323,966.96) (128,902.01) (650,047.79)
20210 10 192,759.47 321,564.16 521,243.10
2022 (192,759.47) (321,564.16) (521,243.10)
202%1 10 112,933.58 133,020.69 501,155.99
2023 (112,933.58) (133,020.69) (501,155.99)
202%2 10 35,901.14 153,425.28 383,631.85
(35,901.14) (153,425.28) (383,631.85)

2024
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2018 28 10,328,962.52 14,660.21 10,314,302.31
o (10.328.962.52) (14.660.21) (10.314.302.31)
2018 10 25,885,390.67 3,802,649.64 32,397,043.34
2o (25.885.390.67) (3.802.649.64) (32.397.043.34)
2015 10 12,971,135.46 9,577,566.21 35,790, 612.59
o (12.971.135.46) (9.577.566.21) (35.790.612.59)
2020 10 8,235,918.71 13,297,369.12 30,729,162.18
201 (8.235.918.71) (13.297.369.12) (30.729.162.18)
20210 L0 4,610,461.65 15,165,687.84 20,173,935.99
o (4.610.461.65) (15.165.687.84) (20.173.935.99)
202;1 10 1,334,176.10 4,035,375.60 17,472,736.49
o (1.334.176.10) (4.035.375.60) (17.472.736.49)
202%2 0 3,835,046.40 4,525,809 40 16,781,973.49
202 (3.835.046.40) (4.525.809.40) (16.781.973.49)
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2024 30
2024 30 2023 30

©) 644,850,839 61,821,850 643,607,403 61,702,642
®) 24,175 2,318 17,828 1,709
©) 4,620,000 442,919 1,163,947 111,588
502,861 48,209 1,336,365 128,117
©) 878,423 84,214 708,478 67,922
165,542 15,871 37,123 3,559
@ 12 4,694,106 450,024 14,981,861 1,436,311
655,735,946 62,865,405 661,853,005 63,451,848
©) 6,923,182 663,725 1,400,364 134,253

©) 2,210,000 211,873
884,254 84,773 708,380 67,912
©) 501,666 48,095 1,338,779 128,349
@) 1,287,559 123,438 1,322,460 126,784
@ 1,111,016 106,513 1,557,134 149,282
) 85,659 8,212 91,751 8,796
70,965 6,803 63,423 6,080
© 52,248 5,009 56,959 5,461
44,820 4,297 114,897 11,015
®) 15,618 1,497 1,412 135
16} 15,483 1,484 19,740 1,892
©) 11,107 1,065 11,261 1,080
22,920 2,197 23,139 2,218
13,236,497 1,268,983 6,709,699 643,259
642,499,449 61,596,422 655,143,306 62,808,589
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2024 30

2024 30 2023 30
(b) 638,627 61,225 371,388 35,605
24,221,570 2,322,122 11,354,873 1,088,592
(16,716,414) (1,602,603) 17,122,069 1,641,493
36,633,861 3,512,088 31,310,408 3,001,729
(3,125,412) (299,633)  (17,101,760) (1,639,546)
41,652,232 3,993,199 43,056,978 4,127,872
©) 5,046,059 483,766 5,499,403 527,228
') 5,046,059 483,766 5,438,073 521,348
©) 315,623 30,259 326,366 31,289
(b) 314,588 30,160 345,308 33,105
) 189,227 18,141 197,714 18,955
) 106,382 10,199 108,644 10,416
80,224 7,691 67,880 6,508
(b) 64,497 6,183 90,394 8,666
) 63,076 6,047 21,465 2,058
142,401 13,652
387 37 61,777 5,923
11,226,122 1,076,248 12,299,425 1,179,146
30,426,110 2,916,951 30,757,553 2,948,727
(h) 10 19,305,872 1,850,854 21,526,223 2,063,719
11,120,238 1,066,097 9,231,330 885,008
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2024 30
2024 30 2023 30
655,143,306 62,808,589 726,346,053 69,634,796
131,333,116 12,590,906 71,892,260 6,892,311
(155,097,211)  (14,869,170)  (152,326,337)  (14,603,526)
11,120,238 1,066,097 9,231,330 885,008
642,499,449 61,596,422 655,143,306 62,808,589
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2024 30

2024 30 2023 30
11,120,238 1,066,097 9,231,330 885,008
969 93 (1,636) (157)
(h) 10 19,305,872 1,850,854 21,526,223 2,063,719
(638,627) (61,225) (371,388) (35,605)
64,497 6,183 90,394 8,666
29,852,949 2,862,002 30,474,923 2,921,631
) (3,456,053) (331,332) (63,947) (6,131)
833,504 79,908 733,032 70,276
(128,419) (12,312) (37,063) (3,553)
(1,243,436) (119,208) 91,536,891 8,775,642
) 2,210,000 211,873 (14,430,000) (1,383,404)
175,874 16,861 (10,541,439) (1,010,608)
7,542 723 6,157 590
@ (61,253) (5,872)
) (154) (15) (47,705) (4,573)
(219) (21) 12,300 1,179
) (4,257) (408) (17,765) (1,703)
©) (4,711) (452) (55,600) (5,330)
(b) (6,092) (584) (3,351) (321)
@) (34,901) (3,346) (83,936) (8,047)
(70,077) (6,718) 40,442 3,877
(d) (446,118) (42,769) 159,360 15,278
5,522,818 529,473 (7,813,954) (749,124)
33,208,250 3,183,675 89,807,092 8,609,806
632,280 60,617 373,277 35,786
(50,291) (4,821) (126,371) (12,115)
33,790,239 3,239,470 90,053,998 8,633,477
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2024 30 2023 30

131,163,171 12,574,613 72,116,742 6,913,832
(155,934,324)  (14,949,424)  (153,051,792)  (14,673,075)

(19, 305,872) (1,850,854)  (21,526,223) (2,063,719)

(44,077,025) (4,225,664)  (102,461,273) (9,822,962)

(969) (93) 1,636 157
(10,287,755) (986,287)  (12,405,639) (1,189,329)
14,981,861 1,436,311 27,387,500 2,625,640
4,694,106 450,024 14,981,861 1,436,311
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2024 30
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2012 26
2012 26
2012 26
2018 28

2027 30
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2024 30 2023 30
100
307105
2024 30
167,263,548 229,273,919 2024 30
884,254
502,861 2023 30
140,062,433 249,343,696 2023 30
708,380

1,336,365
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2024 30 2023 30

2024 30 2023 30
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(d

2024 30 26,653 4,667,453 4,694,106

2023 30 14,981,861 14,981,861
(e

2024 30 2023
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2024 30
2024 30
642,417,922 642,417,922
2,432,917 2,432,917
642,417,922 2,432,917 644,850,839
2024 30
2024 30
6,923,182 6,923,182
6,923,182 6,923,182
2023 30
2023 30

643,572,861

643,572,861

34,542 34,542

643,572,861

34,542 643,607,403
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2023 30
2023 30
1,400,364 1,400,364
1,400,364 1,400,364
2024 30 2023 30
2024 30 2023 30

©
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2024 30
) )
) )<1> @
97,082 (802,383) (705,301) 580,000 (125,301)
24,523 24,523 24,523
(36,804) (36,804) (36,804)
1,043,361 (18,555) 1,024,806 (1,024,806)
164,667 (92,110) 72,557 72,557
46,303 (2,964,542) (2,918,239) 2,010,000 (908, 239)
1,045,098 927) 1,044,171 (1,044,171)
(2,960,878) (2,960,878) 2,030,000 (930,878)
4,292 (28,328) (24,036) (24,036)
(16,958) (16,958) (16,958)
7,501 (1,697) 5,894 5,894
2,432,917 (6,923,182) (4,490,265) 2,551,023 (1,939,242)
)
)
2023 30
81
taxes or
duty
50
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(b
1974 11
0.05
2024 30 2023 30

(c
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2024 30 2023 30
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10 100
10,000 10,000
10 100
10 100
2024 30 2023 30
(
2022 30 42,099,840 521,243 8,124,394 20,173,936
3,491,103 112,934 2,200,853 1,334,176
(8,556,100) (133,021)  (2,287,514) (4,035,376)
2023 30 37,034,843 501,156 8,037,733 17,472,736
6,531,721 35,902 2,285,700 3,856,765
(7,347,345) (153,425)  (1,982,873) (4,527,209)

2024 30 36,219,219 383,633 8,340,560 16,802,292
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2024 30 2023 30
296,288,511 8.180422 288,061,512 7.778122
31,922,645 8,257.400574 42,986,672 8,215.927907
63,131,453 5.251140 58,246,437 4.646174
251,156,840 10.370017 265,848,685 9.755134
10
2024 30 2023 30

11
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2024 30 2023 30
2024 30 2023 30
15
15
2024 30 2023 30
2024 30 2023 30
38.99 40.73
6.57
2024 30 2023 30
2024 30 2023 30

2024 30
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4,667,453 26,653 4,694,106
644,850,839 644,850,839
502,861 502,861
5,688,140 5,688,140
4,667,453 651,068,493 655,735,946
6,923,182 6,923,182
884,254 884,254
5,429,061 5,429,061
13,236,497 13,236,497
2023 30
14,981,861 14,981,861
643,607,403 643,607,403
1,336,365 1,336,365
1,927,376 1,927,376
14,981,861 646,871,144 661,853,005
1,400,364 1,400,364
708,380 708,380
4,600,955 4,600,955
6,709,699 6,709,699
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2024 30
384,993,175 135,517,856 84,537,725 18,201,281 623,250,037
384,993,175 135,517,856 84,537,725 18,201,281 623,250,037
2023 30
455,458,847 74,885,295 73,525,040 24,840,985 628,710,167
455,458,847 74,885,295 73,525,040 24,840,985 628,710,167
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10

2024 30 2024 30 2023 30 2023 30
4.8 4.8 ) 4.6 4.6 )
1.4 1.4 ) 1.1 1.1 )
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
0.3 0.3 ) 0.4 ©.4 )
0.9 0.9 ) 1.4 1.4 )
2.4 2.4 ) 2.4 2.4 )
9.8 9.8 ) 9.9 9.9 )
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2024 30 2023 30
2024 30
309,720,494 314,209,832 2023 30

328,101,026 329,466,848
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2024 30 2023 30
* 2024 30 2023 30
4,694,106 14,981,861
24,175 17,828
4,620,000 1,163,947
2,432,917 34,542
502,861 1,336,365
878,423 708,478
165,542 37,123
13,318,024 18,280,144
2024 30 2023 30
16.31 0.64
58.56 66.07
1.58 8.31
2.03 3.54
21.52 21.44

100.00 100.00
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2024 30 2023 30

2024 30 2023 30
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142/299



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 30 2023 30
6.60 7.25
6.41 6.21
6.33 5.48
5.58
5.21
5.14

12
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2024 30 2023 30
(6N 4,577,078 0.71
W 14,883,527 2.27
@ 26,653 0.00(3)
W 90,375 0.02
@ 95,619 0.02
2,715 0.00(3)
4,694,106 0.73 14,981,861 2.29
O]
580,000 0.09
123,947 0.02
280,000 0.04
480,000 0.07
2,010,000 0.31
280,000 0.04
2,030,000 0.32
4,620,000 0.72 1,163,947 0.17
€
@
®) 0.005
®
2024 30 2022 30
W
1,060,000 0.16
1,150,000 0.18
2,210,000 0.34
€
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13
2024 30 2023 30
0.606977
99.234003 95.784607
0.693750 0.641150
14
2024 30 2023 30
15
2024 30 2023 30
16
2024 30
17
18
2024 12 19
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2024 30
3,152,507 642,417,922 99.99
642,417,922 99.99
15/10/2024  AUD 621,795 USD 414,448 Barclays Bank PLC 24,523 0.01
15/10/2024  AUD 1,027,196 USD 680,642 Morgan Stanley & Co 46,303 0.01
15/10/2024  AUD 3,262,537 USD 2,155,839 HSBC Bank PLC 155,698 0.03
15/10/2024  AUD 4,705,276 USD 3,109,212 Australia & New Zealand 94,803 0.01
Banking Group Ltd

17/10/2024  AUD 79,846 JPY 7,731,523 Natllest Markets PLC 1,780 0.00
17/10/2024  AUD 81,755 JPY 7,671,818 State Street Bank & Trust Co. 4,292 0.00

Australia & New Zealand
17/10/2024  AUD 110,807 JPY 10,757,340 gt 2,279 0.00
17/10/2024  AUD 193,157 JPY 18,378,018 llestpac Banking Corporation 7.591 0.00
17/10/2024  AUD 873,685 JPY 85,639,454 HSBC Bank PLC 8,969 0.00
17/10/2024 JPY 1,594,636,580 AUD 15,058,004 NatlWest Markets PLC 1,043,318 0.16
17/10/2024 JPY 1,594,636,580 AUD 15,057,961 Citibank NA 1,043,361 0.16
2,432,917 0.38
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17/10/2024  AUD 361,000 JPY 37,509,152 Citibank NA (18,555)  (0.00)
17/10/2024  JPY 7,671,818 USD 54,397 Natllest Markets PLC (927)  (0.00)
17/10/2024  JPY 12,214,625 AUD 125,030 liestpac Banking Corporation (1,697)  (0.00)
17/10/2024  JpY 113,227,363 AUD 1,171,604 ige_‘te Street Bank & Trust (28,328)  (0.01)
15/10/2024  USD 320,457 AUD 478,777 UBS AG (16,958)  (0.00)
15/10/2024  USD 877,177 AUD 1,300,929 BNP Paribas (36,804)  (0.01)
15/10/2024  USD 2,332,525 AUD 3,453,577 HSBC Bank PLC (92,110)  (0.01)
15/10/2024  USD 10,915,225 AUD 16,532,617 g;ﬁﬂﬁéigri‘use‘ﬁtéea'md (802,383)  (0.13)
15/10/2024  USD 82,832,768 AUD 122,337,144 HMorgan Stanley & Co (2,964,542)  (0.46)
15/10/2024  USD 82,980,904 AUD 122,550,933 Standard Chartered Bank (2,960,878)  (0.46)
(6,923,182)  (1.08)
642,417,922  99.99
2,432,917 0.38
(6,923,182)  (1.08)
4,571,792 0.71
642,499,449  100.00
AUD
IpY
USD
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2023 30

3,485,744 643,572,861 98.23
643,572,861 98.23
04/10/2023 AUD 25,366 JPY 2,420,743 HSBC Bank PLC 86 0.00
86 0.00
03/10/2023 JPY 4,982,670 AUD 52,428 HSBC Bank PLC (401) (0.00)
03/10/2023 usb 601,362 AUD 943,259 HSBC Bank PLC (5,349) (0.00)
(5,750) (0.00)
21/11/2023 AUD 984,335 USD 628,623 HSBC Bank PLC 5,594 0.00
21/11/2023 AUD 2,694,300 USD 1,730,238 Morgan Stanley & Co 388 0.00
22/11/2023 AUD 35,637 JPY 3,381,612 Morgan Stanley & Co 93 0.00
22/11/2023 AUD 110,297 JPY 10,316,970 NatWest Markets PLC 1,858 0.00
22/11/2023 AUD 552,243 JPY 51,259,001 Westpac Banking Corp 13,474 0.00
22/11/2023 AUD 1,187,616 JPY 112,833,300 State Street Bank & Trust Co. 1,658 0.00

Australia & New Zealand
15/11/2023 USD 577,567 AUD 896,984 Banking Group Ltd 2,453 0.00
21/11/2023 USD 1,139,640 AUD 1,765,437 HSBC Bank PLC 8,938 0.00
34,456 0.00
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21/11/2023 AUD 752,628 USD 487,486 UBS AG (6,369) (0.00)
Australia & New Zealand

21/11/2023  AUD 2,147,723 USD 1,382,826 going Group Ltd (5,282)  (0.00)
22/11/2023 JPY  2,125,927,116 AUD 22,915,686 NatWest Markets PLC (570,674)  (0.09)
22/11/2023 JPY  2,141,570,629 AUD 23,084,849 HSBC Bank PLC (575,414)  (0.09)
21/11/2023  USD 86,612,294 AUD 134,915,999 Barclays Bank PLC (64,068)  (0.01)
21/11/2023  USD 86,612,294 AUD 135,024,739 BNP Paribas SA (172,807)  (0.02)
(1,394,614)  (0.21)
643,572,861  98.23
86 (0.00)
(5,750)  (0.00)
34,456 0.01
(1,394,614)  (0.21)
12,936,267 1.97
655,143,306  100.00
AUD
JPY
USD

150/299



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

G5 Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Statements of Financial Position
As at 30 September 2024

Notes  20-Sep-2024  30-Sep-2023

AUD AUD
Assets
Current Assels
Financial assets al fair value through profi or loss 3ie) 4 644 850 839 643 60T 403
Interest receivable 3k 24175 17.6828
Due from brokers:

Collateral amounts 3 (e} 4,620,000 1,163,847
Receivable for investments sold 502,861 1,336 365
Receivable for Units subscribed 3(g) 8 878423 TOBA4TE
Other assets 165,542 T e
Cash and cash equivalents 3qd)y, 12 4,654,106 14,981,861
Total Assets 655,735,946 661,853,005
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Fimancial Babilities at fair value through profit or loss 3c) 4 5523182 1,400 364
Due to brokers:

Collateral amounts 3{e) 2,210,000 —
Payable for investments purchased 584 254 708 380
Payable for Units redeemed 3ig) 8 501,686 1,338.779
Investment management fees payable T (@) 1,287 558 1322460
Distribution fees payable Tidy 1,111,018 1557134
Manager fees payable T ib} 85,659 1,751
Audit fees payable 70,9865 63423
Administration and transfer agent fees payable 7 ic) 52248 56 855
Legal fees payable 44,820 114, 887
Interest payable 3(b) 15618 1412
Custodian serce fees payable T 15,483 19,740
Trustee fees payable i) 11,107 11,261
Mizcellanaols fees payable 22920 23,139
Total Liabilities (excluding Met Assets Attributable to

Helders of Redeemable Participating Units) 13,236 497 6,709,699
MNet Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable

Participating Units 642,490,449 655,143,306

The sccompanying nofes fom an mbegmal part of the fnanoal Saternents 10
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G5 Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 September 2024

Income
Interest ncome

MNet realized gain/{loss) on financial assets and fnancial

liabilfties at fair value through proft or loss on:
Investments
Foreign currency

et change in unrealized gainf(loss) on financial assets and
fnancial liabiities at fair value through proft or loss on:

Investments
Foreign cumency
HNet Income

Operating Expenses

Investment management fees

Distribution fees

Administration and transfer agent fees

Manager fees

Agent company fees

Custodian senice fees

Audit fees

Interast expense

Trustee fees

Legal fees

Miscellaneous expense

Total Operating Expenses

Net Income from Operations

Finance Costs:

Distributions to participating Unitholders

Change in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units from Operations

The accompamying notes fom an ntegmal part of 2he (nancal gaterments
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Motes 30-Sep-2024 30-Sep-2023

AUD AUD

3 638,627 371,388

24,221,570 11,354,873

{16,716,414) 17,122,068

36,533,251 31,310,408

(3.125.412) {(17.101.760)

41,652,232 43,056,978

7ia) 5,045,059 5,499 403

7 (d) 5,048 058 5,438,073

T g 315,623 326,366

7 b 314,588 345,308

7 (q) 188,227 197,714

7if 106,382 108,644

80,724 67,280

3 (b 64, 497 90,394

(e 63,076 21,485

— 142,401

=287 _61.777

11,226,122 12,209,425

30,426,110 30,757,553

3(m, 10 19,305,872 21,526,223

11,120,238 8,231,330
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G5 Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units
For the Year Ended 30 September 2024

Motes  30-Sep-2024 30-Sep-2023
AUD AUD

Met Assets Aftributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating
Units at Beginning of Year §55,143,306 726,346,053

Tetal Procesds from redesmable participating Unils issued 8 131,333,116 71.892 260
Tetal Payments for redeamable paricipating Units redeemed a {195,007 211) (152,326,337}
Change in net assets attributable to hoelders of redeemable

paricipating Units from cpemtions 11,120,238 9,231,330
MNet Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable

Participating Units at Year End 642,499,449 655,143,306

The accompamying notes fom an ntegmal part of the (nancal gaterments 1
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G35 Australia Hybrid Securities Fund

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended 30 September 2024

Hotes

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
paricipatng Units from cperations
Adjustment for:
Exchange gains/{losses) on cash
Distributions to particpating Unitholders
Interest ncome
Interest expense
Total
Net {Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assats:
Due from brokers:
Collateral amounts 3ie)
Receivable for investments sald
Cther assets
Fimancial assets al fair value through profit or loss
Net Increase/{Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Due to brokers:
Collateral amounts de)
Payable for investments purchased
Audit fees payable
Agent company fees payable 7 ig)
Trustee fees payable 7 (&)
Mizcellaneous fees payable
Custodian senvice fees payable Tih
Administration and transfer agent fees payable Tie
Manager fees payable 7 b}
Investment management fees payable Tia}
Legal fees payable
Distribution fees payable 7 id)
Financial Babilities at fair value through profit or loss
Cash Provided byfiUsed in) Operating Activities
Interest received
Interest paid
Met Cash Provided by/{Used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds received from redeemable participating Units issued
Payments for redeemable participating Units redeemed
Distributions to participating Unitholders

Net Cash Provided by/{Used in) Financing Activities
Exchange gainsilosses) on cash

Met increasefidecreas=) in cash

Cash and cash eguivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and cash equivalerts at End of Year

3(h), 10

The accompamying notes fom an ntegmal part of the (nancal gaterments
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30-Sep-2024 30-Sep-2023
AUD AUD
11,120,238 9,231,330
869 {1.638)
19,305,872 21,526,223
(638,627) (371,388)
64,497 90,394
20,852,940 30,474,923
(3.456,053) (63,947)
833,504 733,082
(128,418) (37,063)
(1.243,438) 91,538,801
2,210,000 {14.430,000)
175,874 {10,541,439)
7.542 6,157
i (61,253)
(154) {47,705)
(219) 12,300
(4,257) (17.765)
(4.711) (55,600)
(6,092) (3.351)
{34,901) {83 936)
{70,077) 40,442
{446,118) 150,360
5,522,818 (7.813.954)
33,208,250 89,807,002
632,280 373,217
{50,281) {126,371)
33,790,239 90,053,998
131,183,171 72,116,742
(155.934,324)  (153.051.792)
19,305,672 21526 223
(44,077,025) _ (102,461,273)
969 1.636
{10.287,755) {12.405,638)
14,981,861 27,387,500
4,694,106 14,981,861
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G3 Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
F:_‘.w_‘ thu_‘ﬂm' Em:_lad 30 Smta!'rybgr 2024

organization

G5 Australia Hybrid Securities Fund (the “Sub-Trust’) is a sub-trust of MUGC G5 Cayman Fund (the “Trust™). The Trust
is an open-ended exempled umbrella unit trust established by a trust deed under the Trusts Act 2011 (Revizion) of the
Cayman Istands dated 10 February 2010 {as supplemented or amended from time to bme, the “Trust Deed”) executed
by Brown Brothers Harriman Trust Company {Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee’) and Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services &
Banking { Luxembourg) S_A. (the "Manager’). The Trust is regulated under the Mutual Funds Act (Revised).

Gaoldman Sachs Asset Management Intermnational ("GSAMI7), a related party to the Sub-Trust, serves as Investment
Manager pursuant to an investment managerment agreement (Management Agreement’) with the Sub-Trust
The Investmwnt Manager is responsible for overseaing and monitoring the day-to-day cperations of the Sub-Trust's
afairs regarding their investments.

The Investment Manager appointed Yama Funds Management Lirited (*Yamra®), a related party of the Goldman Sachs
Group, Inc, ("Goldman Sachs”) as Imvestiment Advizor pursuant to a Master Intercompany Sub-Advisory Agreement
and a Master intercompany Sub-Advisory and Participating Affiliate Services Agreement, respectively (collectively, the
“Invastrent Advisory Agreements’). Undar the Imvestment Advisory Agreements, Yarra provides the Sub-Trust with
continuous professional investment advice, and effects and manages afl transactions on behalf of the Sub-Trust. As
compensation for services rendered under the Investment Advisory Agreements, Yarma receives a fee.

The Sub-Trust commenced operations and launched Unit classes on the following dates:

Class of Units Commencement Dates
AL Class 26 Septembar 205 2
JBY Class (Hadged) 26 Septembar 2011
USD Class 26 Seplembar 3013
USD Cliss [Hedaed) 26 Mareh J018

The Sub-Trust will be terminated on 30 September 2027, unless the Manager extends the duration of the Sub- Trust at
its dissretion on consultation with the Trustee and the Investrment Manages,

The fnancial statements are presented in ALD ("Australian Daollar”), the Sub-Trusts functional and presentation
currency. The Investment Manager considars that this currency most accurately represants the economic effects of the
underying transactions. events and conditions of the Sub-Trust.

Investment Objective

The investrment objective of the Sub-Trust, (the “Feeder Fund™) is to seek to provide Unitholders with a long-term total
return consisting of mcome and capdtal gaing primarily by investing in subordinated term debt secunties, perpetual
subordinated debt secwrities, preferred securities and senior debl securities issued in Australian Dallars through
investrent into the Australia Enhanced Income Fund Il {the "Master Fund?), In relation to such securities, subordinated
term debt securities, perpetual subordinated debt secunties and preferred secunties are collectively referredto as "Hybrid
Soecurties”. Due to this mvestment objective, investors are subject 1o certain unique rsks. The Sub-Trust's investmants
in other funds are subject to the teems and conditions of the rezpective investes fund's Ofering Memarandumn,

The investrment objectiveofthe Master Fundis to seek to primarily invest its assets {excluding cash and cash equivalents)
in a dversified portfolio consisting mainly of Hybeid Securities and senior debt securities issued in Australian Dollars.
The Master Fund may invest in securties issued in other cumencies, and also may mvest in ficed, vanable or floating
rates securities,

The investment managers of the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund are the same.

The Master Fund may engage in transactions i financial derivative nstruments as part of its general investment
peedicy, including without limitation, total return swaps, index futures, confracts for diferences, forward foreign currency
contracts and options.

The Master Fund may utilize transactions in equity index frhwes, bank bill futures, govemnment bon d futures, or common
stocks, primarily by short selling. m order to hedge certain exposures.
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G3 Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
F:_‘.w_‘ the Year Ended 30 Smtambar 2024

Investment Objective (continued)

There can be no assurance that the Sub-Trust's investments will be successful or that the investment objective of the
Master Fund will be achieved or that its portfolio design, risk monitoring and hedging strategies will be successful,

The significant accounting policies of the Master Fund and the Feader Fund are consistent.

As at 30 Septermber 2024 and 30 September 2023, the Feeder Fund helds 100% of the Master Fund's net assets.
The Master Fund is a sub-fund of Goldman Sachs Institutional Funds ple (the “Company™), an investment compary
with variable capital incorporated with limited liabdity in Irefand with registered number 307105 and estabiished as an
umbrella fund with segregated liability bebween sub-funds.

The Feeder Fund invests into the Master Fund. Total subscripions and redemptions made by the Feader Fund into the
Master Fund during the year ended 30 September 2024 were ALUID 167,263,548 and ALID 228,273,819, respectively,
As at 30 September 2024, there were no capital commitment cbligations and the Sub-Trust had ALUD B84, 254 due
to the Master Fund for unsettled purchases and AUD 502881 due from the Master Fund for unsettied sales. Total
subseriptions and redemplions made by the Feeder Fund into the Master Fund during the year ended 30 September
2023 were AUD 140,062 433 and AUD 249,343 698, respectively. As at 30 September 2023, there were no capital
commitment obligations and the Sub-Trust had ALID 708,380 due to the Master Fund for unsettled purchaszes and AUD
1,336,365 due from the Master Fund for unsettied sales,

The Feeder Fund invests into the Master Fund by purchasing the Master Fund's redeemable participating shares.
The Master Fund allows redemptions of these shares on amy business day.

Movemants in the fair value of the Master Fund's portfolio and comesponding movements in the fair value of the Master
Fund may expose the Feeder Fund to a loss.

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
Financlal Statements
Baziz of Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of the financial staterments is i accordance with Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the international Accounting Standards Board ("IFRS Azcounting Standards"). The financial statements have
been prepared under the histornical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and liabilities
{incheding derivative mstruments} at fair value through profit or loss. The preparation of the fmancial statements
requires management 1o make certain astimates and assurmptions that may afect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes, Actual results may differ from those estimates.

h New standards, amendments and interpretations effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and were effective or applicable to the Sub-Trust

The Trust adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to LAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) from 1
January 2024, Although the amendments did not result m any changes to the accounting policies themselves, they
impacted the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements,

The amendments require the dischosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant” accounting policies. The amendments
akso provide guidance on the appfication of materiadity to disclosure of accounting policies, assisting entities to provide
useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to understand other information in the financial
statennants,

There are no other standards, amendments or interpretations to existing standards that are efective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2024 that would be expected to have mataral mpact on the financial statements of the Sub-
Truast,

I New standards, amendments and interpretations Issued but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Sub-Trust

There are no new standards, interprefations or amendments to existing standards that are not yet efective that would
be expected to have a significant impact on the Sub-Trust.
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G3 Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
F:_‘.w_‘ the Year Ended 30 Smtambar 2024

Summary of Material Accounting Policies (continued)
Investment Transactions, Related Investment Income and Operating Expenses

The Sub-Trust records its investment transactions on a trade date bazis. Realized gains and losses are based on
the First In First Qut ("FIFO") method, Dividend income and dividend expense are recorded on the ex-dividend date
and interest and interest expense are accrued over the life of the investment. Cverdraft expenses which are accrued
a5 incurred, if ary, are meleded in mberest expense. Intérest from francial assets at far value through profd of loss
includes accretion of market discount, original issue discounts and amortization of premiums and is recorded inte
income over the life of the underlying investment. Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit of loss
and dividend income are recognized and presented on a gross basis before withhalding tax, if any, in the Statements
of Comprehensive Income. interest income includes interest from cash and cash equivalents. Reimbursement of
expenses is represented in the Statements of Comprehensive Income, if any.

Crperating expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.
Transaction costs, when incurred, are recognized in the Statements of Comprehensive Incomea.

The Master Fund fmances their operations by issuing redeemable shares which are puttable at the holder’s option and
entitles the holder to a proportional stake in the respective Sub-Trust’s net assets. The Sub-Trust holds redesmable
shares in its Master Fund.

The Sub-Trust's maximum exposure to loss from its interests in the Master Fund is equal to the total fair value of its
imvgstrnents in the Master Fund,

Cnce the Sub-Trust has disposed of #5 shares in the Master Fund the Sub-Trust ceases to be exposed to any nsk from
that Master Fund,

As at 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023, the net asszet value of the Master Fund was AUD 842417 922 and
ALD 643 572861, respoctively,

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Falr Value throwgh Profit or Loss
i Classification

The Sub-Trust classifies s investments based on both the Sub-Trust’s business model for managing those financial
aszets and the contractusal cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The porfiolio of financial assels is managed
and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The Sub Trust is primarily focused on fair value information and
uses that nformation to assess the assels’ performance and to make decisions. The Sub-Trust has not taken the option
toirrevocably designate any equity securities as fair value through other comprehensive income. The contractual cash
flows of the Sub-Trust's debt securities are solely principal and interest, however, these securities are nesther habd
for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows nor held both for collecting contractual cazh flows and for sale.
The collection of contractual cash flows is only incidental to achieving the Sub-Trust's business medel's objective.
Censequently, all investments are measurad at fair value through profit or loss.

i Recogrition and Derecogrmition

The Sub-Trust recognizes financial assets and financial Eabiltes on the date it becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the investment. Purchases and sales of financial assets and financial Eabilities are recognized using trade
date accounting. From trade date, any gains and lesses ansing from changes in fair value of the fmancial assets o
financial liab#ties are recordad in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

Financial azsels are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Sub-
Trust has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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G3 Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
F:_‘.w_‘ thu_‘ﬂm' Em:_lad 30 Smta@b@r 2024

Summary of Material Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (conti nued)
i Fair Value Measurement Principles

Under IFRS 9, classification and meazurement of debt assatz will be driven by the enfity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. A debt instrument is measzured
at amortized cost if the obgective of the business model is to holdthe financials asset for the collection ofthe contractual
cash flows and the contractual cash flows under the instrument solely represents payments of principal and interest
[*EPPI").

A debt instrument is measured at fair value through comprehensive income if the objective of the business model is
to hold the financial asset both to collect contractual cash fiows from SPPI and to sell. All other debt instrunments: must
be recognized at fair value through profit or loss, An entity may howeves, at initial recognition, srevocably designate
a financial asset as measured at fair value through proft or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
mgdsy rement or recognition inconsistency.

Derivative and equity instruments are measured at fair value through proft or loss unhess, for equity instruments not
held for trading, an imevecable option iz taken to measure at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Under IFRS 9 the Sub-Trust's investment portfolio continues to be intially recorded at their transaction price and then
measured at fair value subsequent to intial recognition. Gains and losses ansing from changes n the fair vadue of the
‘financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss category are presented in the Statements of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they anse.

Financial assets classified as receivables are camied at amortized cost if any. Financial habilties, cther than those
al fair value through proft or loss, are measured at amortized cost, Financial liabifies arising from redeemabie Uinits
iszued by the Sub-Trust are camied at the redemption amount representing the Unitholders’ right to a residual amount
ofthe Sub-Trust's Net Assets Attributeble to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units (et AssetsT).

The fair value of all securities and dervatives is determined acconding to the following policies.

{iif) Dralbd Securtios
Debt securties, comprising corporate debt, are valued on the basis of dealer supplied quotations or by using a third

party pricing service. VWwhen a debt security has been identified as being in default, the interest accrual on the defaulted
security may be stopped and, upan confirmation from relevant parties, the amount recedvable may be writhen of.

(2] Exchange Listed Assets and Liabilties

The fair value of exchange traded financial imwestments, comprising commeon stock and short-term investments, is
based upen queted markel prces at the penod end date without any deduction for sstimated Rdue Fansaclion cosls,

(%) Monsy Market Imvestments

Meney markel investmants are valued at amorized cost, which approximates fair value,

(i) Shares in Collective Imestment Schemes

The fair value of investments in open-ended westment funds, including collective investment schemes, is based

upon the ofical published Mot Asset Vialue ("MANT) por share a3 suppbed by the administrative agent of the funds in
accordance with valuation policy of applicable funds as outlined in the respective Cffering Memorandum.
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G3 Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
F:_‘.w_‘ the Year Ended 30 Smtambar 2024

Summary of Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)
i Fair Value Measurement Principlas (cortinued)

(i) Shares in Colledtive Imestment Schemes [confinved)

A& structurad entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the deminant factor in
deciding who controls the entity, such as when any voting rights refate to adminisrative tasks only and the relevant
activities are directed by means of contractual arrangements. A structured entity often has some or all of the following
features or attributes; () restricted activities. (b) a narrow and well-defined objective, such as to provide investment
opportunities for investors by passing on nsks and rewards associated with the assets of the structured entity to
investors, {c) insufficient equity o pamnit the structured entity to finance it activities without subordinated financial
support and {d) financing in the form of multiple contractually linked instruments to investors that create concentrations
of credit or ather risks (ranches),

(5] Derivatives

A derivative is an instrurment whose fair value is derved from an underlying instrument, index reference rate or a
combination of these factors. Dervative instruments may be privately negotiated contracts which are often referred to
as over the counter ("OTC™) derivatives or they may be listed and traded cn an exchange. Dervative contracts may
involve future commitments to purchase or sell financial instruments or commedities a3t specified terms on a specified
date, or to exchange mterest payment streams or currencies based on a noticnal or contractual ameount.

Dervative contracts are stated at fair value and recognized as financial assels and fnancial liabiites on the Statemants
of Financial Position. Gains and losses resulting from the change in the fair value are reflected on the Staternents of
Comprehensive Income as a companent of change in unreakzed gain/{loss). Realized gains or losses are recorded on
termination or from periodic cash flow payments,

(i3al Forward Foreign Currency Confracts

In a forward foreign cummency contract, the Sub-Trust agrees to receive or deliver a fved quantity of ane currency for
anather, at a pre-detesmuned price at a future date, Purchases and sales of forward foreign currency centracts having
the same notional value, settlement date, counterparty and right to seftle net are generally offset {which result in a net
foreign currency position of zero with the counterparty) and any realized gains or losses are recognized on trade date,

Forward foreign currency contracks are valued at the mid forward rate by third party pricing service providers.

(6] Al Securdies and Demathes

If @ quoted market price is not avadable from a third party pricing service or a dealer, or a quotation is believed
to be materiafly inaccwrate, the fair value of the investment is determaned by using valuation technigues, Valuation
technigques include the use of recent market transactions. reference to the current fair value of ancther investrment that
is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analyses or any other technigues that provides a reliable estimate of
prices cbtamed in actual market transactions.

Such secunties and derivatives shall be valued at their probable realization value as determined by a Valuer. The Valuer
during the years ended 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023 was Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC and the valuation
function was performed by Goldman Sachs Asset Management Division Controllers: (AMD Controllers).

The investments have been valued in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles that require the use
of certain estmates and assumptions. Although these estimates and assumplions are based on the best available
information, actual results could be materially dferent from these estimates.

There were no securites where the Valuer was used to determine fair value during the years ended 30 Septermber 2024
and 30 September 2023,

iv Transfers bebween levels of the fair value hisrarchy

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy, if any are deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the
reporting year.

159/299



EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

i

L]

ih

G3 Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
F:_‘.w_‘ the Year Ended 30 Smtambar 2024

Summary of Material Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents {short term, highly bquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an ingignificant risk of changes in velue), including time deposits and centificates of deposat,
are valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

Certificates of deposit and time deposis are reclassified from financial assels at fir value through profit or loss to cash
and cash equivalents as they are short term, highly liquid, readity convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to
an insignificant Ask of changes in value,

Total Cash
Cash and Cash
Cash Equivalents Eguivalents

ALUD AUD AUD
30-Sep-20k4 26,653 4 GET 453 4 5o 108
0= Sdrpe 023 . 14 951 861 14 981 681

D fromito Brokers

Due fromto brokers consists primaridy of cash collateral (for derivative conftracts) and margin amounts receivable from/
payable to the Sub-Trust's dearing brokers and varisus counterparties, Collateral armounis due fromAo broker balances
are valued at cost. The amounts receivable from and payable to brokers represents cash seltfed in the Sub-Trust's
braker accounts. These balances are related to cash held as collateral or margin on swaps and futures with clearing
counterparties, futures margin cash receivable/payable to the Sub-Trust's futures clearing merchants, and centrally
cleared swaps margin cash receivable/payable to the Sub-Trust's centrally cleared swaps cleaning merchanis.

These amounts are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost. The Sub-Trust's
due from brokers balances are subject to the expected credit loss model within IFRS 9. No balances are considered
impaired and no amounts have been written off in the period.

Collateral amounts and margin amounts included in due fromfAo brokers are disclosed in the Statements of Financial
Position as at 30 September 2024 and 30 Septernber 2023, respoctively,

Foreign Currency Translaticn

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign curency exchange rate in effect at the date of the
transaction. Assets and Eabiliies of the Sub-Trust denominated in foreign currancies are transiated into the Runctional
currency of the Sub-Trust at the foreign currency exchange rate in effect at the year end date_

Foreign currency exchange differences arising on translation and realized gains and losses on disposals or settiements
of assets and Habilites are recognized in the Statements of Comprehensive Income. Foreign currency exchange gains
of lesses relating to invesiments at fair value through proft or loss and all other faresgn currency exchange gains o
losses relating to monetary items, including cash, are reflected in the net realized gainfiloss) on investments or net
change in unrealized gainfloss) on imvestments in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

Redeemable Units

All redeemable participating Units issued by the Sub-Trust provides the Unitholders with the right to redeem for cash at
the value proportionate to the Unitholder's share in the Sub-Trust's net assets on the redemption date. In accordance
with LAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation”, such Units have bean classifod a3 a financial Bability at the value of
the redemption amount in the Statements of Financial Position. The Sub-Trust is contractually obliged to redeem Units
in accordance with the Offering Memorandum,

Distributions Payable to Holders of Redeemable Units

Distributions/Dividends payable on the redeemable pamticipating Units are recognized in the Statements of
Comprehensive Income as Finance Costs,
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Financial Assets and Fimancial Liabilities at Fair Value throwgh Profit or Loss

The three levels ofthe fir value hierarchy under the amendment to IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”™ are described
beed oo

Level 1 — Unadjusted guoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical,
unrestriched assets or kabilites;

Level 2 ~ Quoted prices in markets that are not active or financial instruments for which significant inputs are cbservable
{ncluding but not limited to gquoted prices for simidar securities, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, volatility and credit
spreads), either directly or indrectly. This may include the \Valuer's assumplions in determining fair value measwere ment:

Level 3 — Prices or valuations that require significant unobservable inputs (including the Valuer's assumptions in
determining fair value measurement),

The level in the fair value hisrarchy within which the fair value measurement i categorized in its entirety shall be
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valse measurement in its entirety. For
this purpese, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety, If a fair
value measurement vses cbservable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that
measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement
in its entirety requires judgment, considenng factors specific 1o the asset or liability.

As at 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023, the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss contain
imestments in underlying funds that have bean fair valued in accordance with the policies sat cut above. The shares of
the underlying funds are not publicly traded; redemptions can enly be made by the Sub-Trust on the redemption dates
and are subject to the required notice periods specified in the Ofering Memorandum. As a resull, the carrying value of
underlying funds may not be indeative of the value ultimately realized on redemption,

The fair value of the imvestments in the underlying funds is primarily based on the latest available redemption price
a5 reported by the administrator of the underhying funds, The Sub-Trust may make adjustments to the value based on
considerations such as; liquidity of the Sub-Trust's holdng in the underying funds or their undertying investments, the
value date of the NAW provided and any restictions on redemplions.

The following tables show financial assets and fnancial liab®%es recognized at fair value, analyzed between the three
levels described previcushy:

Financial Assets measured at fair value

F0-Sep-2024
Farr valué misasunammant of 30-5ep-1024
Lenrad 1 ALD Laval 3 o0 6D Lenval 3 ALIDH Tioted ALICY
Fnancial assets af fair valse through proft or kss
lewresiment Fund 647817 822 — _— B4241T 222
Feoreeard Foreegn Cumency Contrads - 2432017 — 2432917
= T ooAEE T aaman T — T eR B

Financial Liabilities measured at fair value

0-Sep-2024
Far valug msdsurement 8t 20-Sep-2024
Ly 1 ALID Ll 4000 Limsasl 3 ALID Tobal ALIDY
Financial labidmies at fer valiue through profR o loss
Fonwand Foresgn Cumency Conbracis —_ B.022 182 —_ BOX3 182
Toitad = (RPN = [N-FRRETS
20
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Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value throwgh Profit or Loss (conti nued)

Fimamcial Assets measured at fair value

J0-Sep-2023
Fair value measurement at 30-Sep-2023
Lmrdel 1 ALIE) Laval 2 ALID Ll 3 ALID Tr.\lg BLICK
Financies assats af tair vales through profl or loss
Trevwstrnant Fund 843,572 861 — - 843,572 881
Forward Forgegn Curmancy Conlbracs = 34547 - 34 S4 7
Total [ZRETFET] EE T = [T ERIEDE]
Finamcial Liab@ities measured at fair value
30-Sep-2023
Fair value measuremant at 30-Sep-2023
Lenvid 1 ALID Lawal 2 ALFD Level 3 ALID Total ALICY
Fmancaal lisbilthes al far value through prof € or loss
Foreeard Foresgn Curmency Conlracts — 1,400, 364 — 1,400,364
Tota = T 400 353 = T 400 364

During the years ended 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023, there were no transfers between Lavel 1, Level 2
and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and financial Babilities which were recorded at fair value.

There wera no securities leveled at Level 3 at 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023,

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities not camied at falr value but for which fair value s disclosed

Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrat, if any, are classified as Level 1. All other assets and llabdities not
measured at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed are dassified as Level 2. Refer to the Statements of Financial
Position for a breakdown of assets and liabilities and to Mate 3(c) for a description of the valuation techniques,

The puttable value of redeemable participating Units classffied as a fmancial liability is calculated based on the nat
difference between total assets and all cther liabilites of the Sub-Trust in accordance with the Sub-Trust's Offering
Memorandum. These Unsts are not traded on an active market. A demand feature is attached to these Units, as they
are recesmable at the holders' option and can bo put back to the Sub-Trust at any dealing date for cash equal to
proporticnate Units of the Sub-Trust's NAY altributable to the Units class. The fair value iz based on the amount payable
on demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid. The impact of dscounting
in this instance is not materal. As such, Level 2 is deemed to be the most appropriate categorization for Met Assets
Attributable to Holders of Redesmable Participating Units,

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Dervatives

In order to better define s contractual rights and to secure rights that will help the Sub-Trust mitigate its counterparty
risk, the Sub-Trust may enter into an Intemational Swaps and Derpvatives Association, Inc. Master Agreement (1504,
Master Agreement’) or similar agreements with its derivative contract counterparties. An 1304 Master Agreement
is a bilateral agreement between the Sub-Trust and a counterparty that governs OTC derivatives, including foreign
exchange contracts, and typically contains, among other things, collateral posting terms and netting provisions in the
ovent of a default andior terrmination event. The provisions of the I1SDA Master Agreement typically peerst a single
net payment inthe event of a default (close-out netting) or ssmilar event, including the bankruptey or insobvency of the
counterparty.

Collsteral and margin requirerments oiffer betwesn exchange traded dervatives and OTC dermabves. Margin
requirements are estabiched by the broker or clearing house for exchange-traded and centrally cleared derivatives
{financial futures contracts, options and centrally cleared swaps) pursuant to the governing agreements for those
instrument types. Brokers can ask for margin in excess of the minimum in certain crcumstances. Collateral berms are
centract-specific for OTC derivatives (foreign currency exchange contracts, oplions and certain swaps). For derivatives
traded under an ISDA Master Agreement, the collateral requirernents are typically calculated by netting the mark-to-
market amount for each transachon under such agreement and comparing that amount fo the value of any collateral
currently pledged by the Sub-Trust and the counterparty. Additionally, the Sub-Trust may be required to post additional
collateral to the counterparty in the form of initial margin, the terms of which would be outlined in the confirmation of
the OTC tranzaction.

M
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Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)
Derfvatives {confinued)

For fmancial reporting purposes, cash collateral that has been pledged to cover obligations of the Sub-Trust and cash
collgteral received from the counterparty, if any, is reported separately on the Statements of Financial Position as due
frormfdue to broker. Mon-cash collateral pledged by the Sub-Trust if any, is noted in the Schedules of Investments.
Generally, the amaount of collateral due from or 1 & counterparty must exceed a minmum ransfer amount threshold
before a transfer is required to be made. To the extent amounts due to the Sub-Trust from its counterparties are not
fully collateralized, contractually or otherwise, the Sub- Trust bears the risk of loss from counterparty nonperformance.
The Sub-Trust attempts to mitigate counterparty sk by only entering into agreaments with counterparties that it believes
to be of good standng and by monitering the financial stability of those counterparties.

Additionally, the netting of assets and liabiliies and the offsetting of collateral pledged or received are based on
contractual netting/set-of provisions in the IS0DA Master Agreement or similar agreements. However, in the event of a
default or insclvency of a counterparty, a court could determine that such rights are not enforceable due to restrictions
of prohibitions against the Aght of setoff that may be imposed due to a particular jurisdiction’s bankruptey or msolvency
lawes,

The follewing table set forth the Sub-Trust's net exposure for OTC derivative instruments that are subject to enforceable
master netting arrangements or similar agreements at the year ended 30 September 2024,

F0-Sep-2024
] i A vt it Lis bt !
Nt Denvatve  Colistersl
Agaati L] L]

[ Forwards Forerards iLisbEites) Pladged Smelungt
AusFaka & Niw Jasend Barkry

rmmLy LI [ s (T Ja) EL T I R ]
Bt oy Bk PLEC 523 - 14513 - .51
B Pantat B4 - (36,804) {IE0) - (38,504
Cobbana 1 1043, 20 (18,554) 1508600 {1,004 850 -
HEBC Bk PLE T BT AL PR - 11,557
Mo i Blasley FL {T884 540 (rd 1] e ) 2090 06d e, 23
Hubwint Manots FLC 1,045, 098 [ 5] 18,17 048171} -
Etandand Cratined B ik - {1550,878 (2980, ETE 100 EORETE
Blabi Sraed ik & Trigat £ 1,7 8,339 {1008 - 4,036
LEdAD - (16,968} [LLE - 8550
Wiﬂ I}m.l.ﬂ tt‘&ﬂdﬂ T & FLR ] £ - ﬁ&
Total EYER T AN 14,490, 5, TAANIEY (LS A7)

0 G0 DTS riaine For pffaeg DA nol nefied i e STagmens of Finandial Poagons
2 et am cunt nepresents the net amount e (o} from: Courtirpnty in e event of & defaut based on Ihe contrachud Set-off sghts uncler B agreement. Net
Ameant o LS Ay Cver-Collateraied arnaurts

The Sub-Trust's net exposure to darivative instruments was immaterial as it was below 1% as at 30 September 2023,

Taxation

There are at present no corporation, income, capital gaing, profits or other taxes in the Cayman Islands which would
apply to the profits in respect of the Sub-Trust. Mor are there gift, estate or inheritance taxes in the Cayman Islands.
The Trustee has applied for and has received Fom the Govemnor-in-Cabinet of the Cayman |slands an undertaking in
accordance with Section 81 of the Trusts Act (as amended) that for a period of 50 years from the date of the creation
of the Master Trust no law which is thereafter enacted in the Cayman |slands imposing any taxes or duty to be levied
on income or on capital assets, gains or appreciation or amy tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tex shall
apply to the property comprised in or any income arising under the Sub-Trust or to the Trustee or Unitholders thereof
in respect of any such property or income; provided that a Unitholder who is at any time resident or dorrsciled in the
Cayman Islands {other than any object of a charitable trust or power or an exempted or ordinary non-resident company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands) shall be liable in and in respect of such time to all and any tax and duty as if
such undertaking had never been given and nothing in the relevant section of the Trusts Law shall be construed as
T:-r;p'l:ing;;y such person restdent or domiciled in the Islands from any law impesing any tax or duty refemred to in
the Trusts Act,
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Taxation (continued)

The Sub-Trust invests in securities issued by entities which are domiciled in countries other than the Cayman lslands.
Many ofthese foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non residents,
such as the Sub-Trust. Typically, these capital gains taxes are required to be determined on a self assassment basis
and, therafore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Sub-Trust's brokers on a “withholding” basis,

In accordance with LAS 12 - Income Taxes, the Sub-Trust is required to recognize a tax liability when it is probable that
the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liabdity to be assessed on the Sub-Trust's capital gains sourced from
such foreign country, assuming the redevant taxing authorities have full knowledge of all the facts and circumstances,

The tax lmbility is then measured at the amount expected to be paid o the relevant taxation authonties using the tax
|aws and rates that have bean enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, There is sometimes
uncertainty about the way enacted tax law is applied o ofshore investment funds. This creates uncerainty about
whether or not & tax Rability will ultimately be paid by the Sub-Trust. Therefore when measuring amy uncertain tax
liabilities management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which could influence
the likelihoad of payment, including any formsal or informal practices of the relevant tax autheribes.

For the years ended 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023, the Sub-Trust has measured uncertain tax liabilities
and related interest and penalties with respect to foreign capital gains taxes at nil, Vhile this represents management's
best estimate there remains a risk that foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes on capital gains eamed by the
Sub-Trust. This could happen without giving any prior waming. possibly on a retrospective basis, and could result in a
substantial loss to the Sub-Trust,

Significant Agreements and Related Parties
Imvestment Hmaagemem and Advisors Fee

Under the terms of the Management Agreement, the Investment Manager receives, from the assets of the Sub-Trust,
a quarterty fee accruing daily and calculated and paid on a quarterly basis in amears equal to 0.B0% of the Sub-
Trust's average NAV, determined as of the fast business day of the applicable quarter end, adjusted to reflect any
subseriptions, redemptions and distributions during the applicable calendar quarter. In addition, subject to the eonsent
of the Investment Manager, the Trustee reserves the right to waive fees, or impose greater or lesser fees on, or to
rebyate all or & portion of any of the nvesiment management fees to amy Unithelder, ncludng afilates of the Investrment
Manager, a5 may be agreed to by the Investrment Manager, Trustee and the applicable Unitholder. The investrent
management fees are disclozed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended 30 September 2024

and 30 Septembar 2023, respectivaly.

The Sube-Trust invests in an undedying fund which also may pay imestment management fees to the imvestment
advisor who is a related party to Yama. The Sub-Trust indirectly bears the expenses paid by the underlying fund. The
table below sets forth the fee rate for the underying fund and is as follows:

Annual Fes
Underying Fund Rate %
Australis Enhanoad kncome Fund 1L, Class K0 {Acc), A0 chares il

Manager Fee

Mitsubizhi UFJ Investor Services & Banking {Luxembourg) SA (MIBL® or the "Manager”) serves as the Manager of
the Subt-Trust.

MIEL has baen authonzed as a cormmaercial bank andis regulstedin the Grand Duchy of Luxembaung by the Coammissien
de Surveillance du Sectewr Financier ("CS5F7). It was incorporated in Luxembourg as a société anomyme on 11 Apel
1974 a5 a majority-owned subsidiary of The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd,

The Mma%u receives, from the assets of the Sub-Trust, a fee accruing daily and paid on a quartedy basis in arears
equal to 0.05% af the Sub-Trust's average MAY. The manager fees for the years ended 30 Septermber 2024 and 20
September 2023, are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income, respectively.
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Significant Agreements and Related Parties (continued)
Administration and Transfer Agent Fee

Brown Brothers Hamman & Co. ("BBH") is the Sub-Trust's Administrator and Transfer Agent. The Administrator and
Transfer Agent perform cedain day-to-day adrnistrative tasks on behalf of the Sub-Trust, including maintenance ofthe
Sub-Trust's books and records, calculation of the NAV and payments of the Sub-Trust's expenzes.

BEH is paid solely out of the assets of the Sub-Trust including assel-based, safekeeping, transaction, sarvicing and
other fees as may be agreed upon from time to time with the Investment Manager. Additionally, at month end, the
securities held by the Sub-Trust are segregated based on the transaction type and & fee rate is applied, The Sub- Trust
will pay such fees monthly in armears._

Annual admanistration and transfer agent charges on the value of month end average net assets will be assessed atthe
Sub-Trust level, based on the following schedule:

Astats up 1o LISD SO0 malian 4 0 bpe
Azzels between S0 S0 milion — USD1 bikon 3¢ bps
Azcals (= L] LES0H 1 ilkon 25 bors

The Adminetation and Trareter Agers fees. ane corered tmm AU D o LISD

The administration and transfer agent fees are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years
ended 30 Septernber 2024 and 30 Septernber 2023, respectively.

Distribution Fee

The Manager may, from time to time, appoint one or more entities as distributor (the "Japanese Distributors® or the
“Distributors”) of the Sub-Trust in Japan.

The Jlgnm Distributors or Distributors receives a fes, accruing daily and paid on a quarterly basis in arears, equal
te0.80% of the Sub-Trust’s average ha\ adjusted to reflect any subscriptions, redemptions or distributions during the
applicable calendar quaner,

The distribution fees are disclosed in the Staternents of Comprehensive Income for the years ended 30 September
2024 and 30 September 2023, respectively.

Trustee Fee

Brown Brothers Harriman Trust Company (Cayman) Lirited acts as the Trustee for the Sub-Trust. The Trustee is
responsible for the overall supenvision of the Sub-Trust's assets, pursuant to the terms of the Declaration of Trust. The
Sub-Trust will pay such fees, monthly in arears. to the Trustee egqual to 0,.01% of the average MAW.

The trustee fees are disclozed in the Statements of Comprehensive Incorme for the yvears ended 30 September 2024
and 30 Septemiber 2023, respectivaly.

Custodian Fee

The Trustee has delegated the responsibility for custody ofthe Sub-Trust's assets to BBH. The custodian carries out the
usual dubies regarding custody, cash and secunties deposits, without any restricion. Fees are charged on safekeeping
of securities on a monthly basis, A month end, the securities for the Sub-Trust are egated based on the cou of
oigin, The USD equivalent fair value is derived for each security and a fee rate i ﬁndha\mﬂ on country uroﬁym

The custodian fees are dizclozed in the Staternents of Comprehensive Income for the years ended 30 September 2024
and 30 September 2023, respectively.

Agent Company Fee

Goldman Sachs Asset Management Co,, Lid, acts as the Agent Company in Japan of the Sub-Trust, The Agent

Company receives a fee, accruing daily and paid on a quarterly basis in arrears, equal to 0.03% of the Sub-Trust's
aversge NAY
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Significant Agreements and Related Parties (continued)

Agent Company Fee (continued)

The agent company fees are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended 30 September
2024 and 30 September 2023, respectively,

Redeemable Participating Units

Classes Issue Price Minirium Initial Subscription
ALD B0 T0 AL 100

JFY (Hedged) JEY 10,000 JEY 10,000

LED USD 10 UE0 100

IS0 {Hedged] UE0 10 LSS 100

Linits will be cffered for sale on each business day at the NAV per Unit of the applicable class.

Units are redeemable at the option of the Unitholder upon notice given in accordance with the termns of the Offering
Memorandum. Units will be redeemmed at the NAY per Unit of the applicable Class prevailing as of close of business on
the applicable Redemption Date, provided that the Investment Manager may, in its sole discretion, reduce such amount
by any expenses incurmed in connection with such redemption,

Units of the Master Fund are alsoredeemable at the option ofthe Unitholder on demand upon natice given in accordance
with the teems of the Ofering Memorandum.

As of 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023 there are five Unitholders, one of which is a related party to the
Manager.

The following summarizes the acthity in the Sub-Trust's Uinits,

Humber of Units

Clags JFY Clazs LISD

Class ALID [Hedged) Class USD (Hedge d)

Balance 30 September 2022 4 r89. 840 521,243 8.124 394 20,173,936
Subscnpliondg of redeemable patsapating L 2401 103 192 934 2 200 85% 1334 976
Redemptions of redesmable partapating Lints {8,556 100) (133021} {2,387 514} {4 625 376)
Balance 30 September 2023 37 34, 843 601,156 BO3T, 733 AT 4T2.736
Subscrptions of redesmable parhospating Ursts BEM. TN 35 902 2,285 100 2856 TES
Redempliong of mdeemable partapating Lints [T 347 345) (153 425) {1882 871} (4 527 9]
Balance 30 September 2024 36,219,219 343,633 8,340,680 16802252

HAV per Unit

The consideration received or paid for receemable participating Units fssued or re-purchased respectively is based on
the value of the Sub-Trust's net assets value per redeemable participating Units at the date of the transaction.

The MAY and NAY per Unit for each Unit class outstanding for the Suls-Trust are as follows:

30-Sep-2024 30-8ep-2023
Linlt Clags Mal Azg el Vabie NA‘JFMLHLH Plat Agdet Vale HAY Pér Uit
AUDClass ALD 206, 788 511 AUD 810422 ALED 258,061,512 ALID TTITE122
JP Class (Hedged) AD 31822645 JPY 257 400574 ARD 4.2 GEE 672 Y B 205 83Ta0T
UsSD Class ALD 63,131,453 LsD 5251140 AuD £8 248 437 ush 4 B45174
USD Clas s [Hedged | AL 251,158 B40 LD AR ATO0NT ALRD 2G5 B4 625 UsD Q755134

25
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Distributions

Distributions are made at the election of the Inmvestment Manager and the amounts declared and paid during the years
ended 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023 are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income when
Met Assets Altributable Holders of Redeemable Participating Units are classified as a financial lability. Distributions
te Unitholders reduce the Sub-Trust's NAY per Unit without any correspondng change in the number of Units per
Unitholder. This results in 8 Unitholder's overall nvestment in the Sub-Trust being reduced. In addition, any distributions
pad dunng & pencd which are in excess of the Sub- Trust's accumulated net incomallass) fram operations results in a
portion of the distributions being a return of capital.

Financial Investments and Associated Risks

The Sub-Trust's investing activities expese it to vanous types of risks that are associated with the financial investments
and markets in which the underlying Master Fund invests, These may be both derivative and non-derivative financial
imrestments. The Sub-Trust's investment portfclo is comprsed of a sole underlying fund and derivative investments
at the period end. The Trustee has appointed the Investment Advisors to manage the risks of the Sub-Trust. The
significant types of financial nisks which the Sub-Trust is exposed to are market risk, Bquidity nsk and credit risk, Events
such as war, military conflict, acts of terrorism, social unrest, natural dizasters, recessions, inflation, rapéd interest
rate changes, supply chain dsrupbons, sanchbons, the spread of infectiows ilness o public health threats could also
significantty impact the Sub-Trugt and its investments, The Offering Memorandum provides details of these and other
types of risk some of which are addittonal to that information provided in these financial staterments.

Aszzet allocation i determined by the Sub- Trust's Investment Advisors who manage the allocation of assets to achieve
the investrment objective as detailed in Mote 2. Achievement of the investment cbjective invalves taking risks. The
Investment Advisors exercise judgment based on analysis, research and risk management techniques when making
immestment decisions. Divergence fom the benchmark andfor the target asset allocation and the composition of the
portfalio is menitered in accordance with the Sub-Trust's risk management policy.

The existence of multipe investment vehicles potentially investing in the same underlying fund, presents ceain unique
risks to investors, The Sub-Trust may be matedally afected by the actions of anather entity investing in the same
underlying fund. For example, if another Unitholder ofthe underlying fund redeems some or all of itz interests, the Sub-
Trust, may experence higher pro rata cperating expenses, thereby producing lower retums. Similary, the underlying
fund may become less diverse due to redemptions from its cther Unitholders, resulting in increased portfolio risk.
The underlying fund rmay restrict its mvestment activities or ba precluded from investing in certain instruments due to
regulatory restrictions on certain of s direct or indirect investors or otherwise, which may have an adverse effect onthe
performance of the underying fund, and, in tum, the Sub-Trust.

The risk management policies employed in relation to the Sub-Trust are detailed below:

Market Risk

The patential for changes in the fair valee of the Sub-Trust's investment portfiolio is referred to as market risk. Commonly
used categories of mamkel risk include currency risk, interest rate risk and other price sk,

. Currency risk may result from exposures to changes in spot prices, forward prices and volatilities of currency
rates.
. Inbprest rate risk may result from exposures to changes in the level, slope and curvature of the various yield

curves, the volatility of interest rates, mortgage prepayment speeds and credit spreads.

. Cther price risk is the risk that the value of an investment will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices
other than those arising from curency risk or interest rate risk and may result from exposures to changes in
the prices and volatilities of individual equities, equity baskets, equity indices, and commedities.

The market risk strategy is driven by the Sub-Trust's investment risk and return objectives.

Market rizk is managed through the application of rick budgeting principles. The knvestment Advisors determine an
appropriate risk target. commanly refered to as Tracking Ermor, employing a risk budgeting framework.

A Market Risk Analysis Group at Goldman Sachs ("IMD MRA”) is responsible for independently menitering, analyzing
and reporting the market risks taken by the Investment Advisors. IMD MRA uses a number of risk metrics to monitor the
market risks including monitoring sensitivities, and Tracking Emror.

26
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Financial Investments and Associaled Risks (continued)

Market Risk {continued)

Details of the Sub-Trust's investment portfolio at the reporting date are disclosed in the Schedules of lnvestments. All
indhadual collective investrment schemes and derivative investiments are disclosed separately.

i) Currency Risk

Each cumency class ofthe Sub-Trust will seek to hedge against each relevant currency (with the exception of the USD
class which is discussed further below). This is referred to a5 Class Hedging, Moreover, where a Unitholder invests in
Units of a Hedged Class that are hedged into a class cumency cther than the home currency of the Unitholder's own
jurisdiction, such Unitholder will be expesed to the significant risk that the class currency will depreciate against such
home currency.

Hedgng with the relevant class currency is not necessanly complete and each currency class may be subject to
currency exchamnge fluctuation of the curency in which the Units have been issued.

The assets of the Sub-Trust are denominated in ALUD, the value of the USD Class will fluctuate in line with the LSO
AL D exchange rate regardless of underlying performance,

In principle, each class of the Sub-Trust iz hedged to the currency of that class with the exception of the USD dlass.
Hedging gans and losses, with respect to hedgng actvity undertaken by the Sub-Trust on behalf of a Currency Class,
are allccated solely to that respective currency class.

The Sub-Trwst may invest in financial investments and enter into transactions denominated in currencies cther than
its functional currency, Consequently, the Sub-Trust may be exposed o risks that the exchange rate of its functional
currency relative to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse efect on the value of that
portion of the Sub-Trust's assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than its functional currency, Please refer
to the Schedules of Investrents of the Sub-Trust which details investments in currencies other than its Bunctional
currency. At 30 Septernber 2024 and 30 September 2023, substantially all non-AUD investments were hedged to the
ALD. This is referred to as Portfolio Hedging.

When an investor invests into a Linit class which is in a different currency to the base currency of the Sub-Trustin which
itinvests, the currency risk of the imvestor will be different to the currency risk of the Sub-Trust.

The Sub-Trust had no significant currency risk exposure at 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023.

Arhough not afecting total Sub-Trust net income, the value of the USD cass will fluctuate in Bne with USDIALID
exchange rate. 'l‘hua?nre. a 15% appreciation/depreciation in the USD will impact the net assets of the respective USD
elazs by - 15% and will not have ary impact on the cther classes,

The Sub-Trust had following currency concentrations, including hedging. greater than /5% of MAW as at 30 September
2024 and 30 September 2023:

Currency Eurrency
concentration concentration
Curmrency 30-Sep 2024 30-5ep-3023
sh 9% 40 TI%,
JEY - E5T%

For the Master Fund there were no currency concentrations, including hedging, greater than +~5% of NAY at 30
Septemnber 2024 and 30 September 2023
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Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
Market Risk {continued)
{iip Interest Rate Risk
The Sub-Trust may invest in fixed income securities through its indirect exposure to the investments of the Master
Fund. Any change to the relevant interest rates for particular securities may result in the Investrment Advisors being
unable to secure similar retumns on the expiry of the contracts or the sale of securities. In addition, changes to prevailing
interest rates or changes in expectations of fulure rates may result in an increase or decrease in the value of the

securities held. In general, if interast rabes rise, the value ofthe fived income securibes will decline. A decline in interast
rates will in general have the opposite effect.

The Sub-Trust may invest in instruments in desired currencies at fixed, floating and zero rates of interest through its
indirect exposure to the investment of the Master Fund.

The Sub-Trust had no significant direct interest rate risk exposure at 30 September 2024 and 30 Septernber 2023,
however the Sub-Trust did have indirect interest rate exposure via the Master Fund's investment portfolio.

The interest rate profite of the fnancial assets and liabilties of the Sub-Trust is as follows:

At 30-Sep-2024
Hen terast
Uptelyear 1. 5years  OverS years Bearing Tatal

Asgels
Cath and cash equivalents 4 05T 453 - - 26653 4 504 108
Fimancal assats hedd for trading andfor

hesdiggneg - - - 648 550,339 E44 850 859
Receivable lor imvesiments sold - - - 02861 B 1
Cither assets - - - S5ED, 140 5,688,140
Total Asssts 4 BET 453 - - 651 063,453 665, T35 946
Lisbilities:
Finaincaal babdibes hald for iradeng andor 6923182 5923 12

hertdigrsg = - -
Payabla for imvesbments purchased - - - BEd 354 g8 354
D Epkwlihis - = = 5470061 SAZI0E1
Total Liablliies excluding net assets

attributable to Unitholders - - - 13,235, 457 13,235 487
At 30-Sep-2023

Hen iMerest
Up o 1 yresr 1- 5years Civar S years Bearing Tatal

Asaets
Cazh and cash equivalents 14,681 281 - = = 14 881 851
Fiariaal sddeb hbld for trading andior

Fedigineg - - = 43807403 B43607 403
Rartaivable for imvoesimonts sokd - - - 1,336 365 1,345 365
Cither assels = - - 1,937 3716 1,927 3TE
Total Assels 14 9481 @51 - - B4E6 871,144 661,853 D06
Liabilities
Finargiel batdibies hald for irodeng andfr

Faniigung - - - 1,400 5364 14060 364
Payaila fof mmashiments purchased - - - T8 380 TOB 380
Ciirer kakmlihes - - = 4 500955 4 800 955
Tatal Liabiliies sxcluding net asseta

atiributable ta Unitholders = = = 6,709,659 6,708 598
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Financial Investments and Associaled Risks (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

(i) Interest Rate Risk {continued)

The interest profie of the financial aszets and kabilities of the Master Fund is as follows:

AL 30-Sep-2024
Man Inten: st
Uptodyear 1-5years  Overb years Bearing Total
ABEets
Financal assats held for trading andior
hentigeng I 90375 135,517,856 84,537,725 18,304 281 623,250,037
Tatal Azsets ML GHINTE  1ISHITESS  B4GET.TES 18301 81 623 260,037
At 30-Sep-202F
MNon Interest
Uptelyear 1- Syears OverS years Bearing Totad
Angets
Fissancal agtats hald for IrEdirgg andiorn
hiriging AAEMY TARES NG TSI 24,540 985 G28.710,187
Tatal Assets 455455847 T4.695.395 73605040 24340 398 B28.710,167

{iiy Other Price Risk

Other price risk is the nisk that the value of a financial investment will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices,
other than those ansing from currency risk or interest rate risk whether caused by factors specific to an indwidual
investment, &% issuer or any factor affecting financial investments traded in the market,

Ag the SubeTrust's financal investments are camed at fair value with fair value changes recognized in the Statements
of Comprehensive Income, all changes in market conditions will directly afect Met Assets Aftributable Holders of
Redeoemable Participating Uinits.

The Sub-Trust’s investments in coliective investment schemesfmutual funds are based upon the MNAY as supplied
by the underhving funds, in accordance with the valuation policy of the applicable fund as outiined in #s Offering
Memorandurm. While it is expected that the assets of the mutual funds will generally be valued by an independent third
party admmisirator of cther service provider, there may be arcumstances in which certain securities or other assets of
a mutual fund may not have a readily ascertainable market price. In such circumstances, the manager of the relevant
mutual fund may be required to value such securities or instruments.

Lha following analysis for the Sub-Trust is presented based on the indirect exposure to the inve stments of the underlying
nd.

Impact on NAV for a 10% Price Movement

30-Sep2d 30-Sep-24 0-Sep-23 30-Sep-23

Higher L cwrer Higher Lewer

Baris 4 5% {4 5%]) 4 5% 4 5%)

Irs L 14% {1.4%] 1. 1% (1. 150
Hotaks, Molels, Inns &

Gamang 0.0RG 0.01% 0% 0%
Funds 0 3% {0 3% ] 0 4%, {05
Fimancials 054 {0 596] 1.4% [1ad%)
Oilhar 4% {2 4%] 24% [ 2 4%%)
Total Partfalia 0B% [2.8%) B8.5% (8.5%:)

e}
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Financial Investments and Associaled Risks (continued)
Market Risk {continued)
(i Limitations of Sensitivity Analysis

Some of the limitations of the sensithity analysis lables above include:

. the analysis i based on histosical data and cannot take account of the fact that future market price movements,
corredations bebween markets and levels of market liquidity may bear no redation to historical pattems;

. the analysis is a relative estimate of risk rather than a precise and accurate number;

. the analysis represents a hypothetical outceme and is not intended to be predictive; and

. future market conditions could vary significantly from those experienced in the past.

Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Sub-Trust will encounter difficulty in meeting cbligations asscciated with financial
liabilities that are seted by delivening cash or anather financial asset. Among cther things liquidity could be impaired by
an inability to access secured andfor unsecured sources of financing, an inability ko sell assets or unforeseen cutflows
of cash or collateral or viclations of counterparty or prime broker terms or covenants. This situation may arise due
to circunrstances outside of the Sub-Trust's control, such as a general market disruption or an operational problem
affecting the Sub-Trust or third parties. Also, the ability to =ell azsets may be impaired if other market participants are
seeking to sell smilar assets at the same time.

The Sub-Trust's fmancial assets and financial Babilites include investments in derivative contracts traded over the
counter, which are not traded in an organized public market and which may Be illiguid and in investments which may
represent a significant percentage of izsue size. As a result, the Sub-Trust may not be able to Bguidate quickly some
of these investments at an amount close to fair value in order to meet requirements, o to respond to specific events
such as deterioration in the creditwarthiness of any particular issuer. The forced liquidation of investment positions may
cause financial losses.

The Sub-Trusts investments include collective investment schemes, which may impose greater restricions on
redemptions than those mposed by the Sub-Trust. This may include oferings less frequent redemption dates than are
offered by the Sub- Trust ta its Unitholders.

The Sub-Trust provides for the subscription and redermption of Units and it is therefore expozed to the liquidity risk
associated with Unitholder redemgptions in accondance with the terms in the Offering Memorandum. The Sub-Trust's
Offering Memorandum provides for the daily subseription and redemption of Units.

The Sub-Trust is managed to include Bguid investiments sufficient to meet narmal liguidity needs althaugh substantal
redemnptions of Units in the Sub-Trust could require the Sub-Trust to liquidate its investments more rapidly than
otherwise desirable in order to raise cash for the redemptions. These factors could adversely affect the value of the
Units redeemed and the valuation of the Units that remain cutstanding and the liguidity of the Sub-Trust's remaining
aszets if more liquid assets have been sold to meet redemplions.

The Trustes may limit o suspend redemplions in certain crocumstances, including, but not limited to, when the
determination of NAY has been suspended: where the disposal of part or all of the Sub-Trust's assets to mest
such redemption requests would, in the reasonable opinion of the Trustee, be prejudcial to Unitholders; or under
extracrdinary circumstances beyond the controf ofthe Trustee. With respect to any redemption. having consulted with
the Investmant Manager, the Trustes may reserve amounts from the redemption proceeds for any expenses, liabilties
of contingencies, even if such reserves are not required by IFRS.

As at 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023, all lability amounts are due within three months.

Az at 30 September 2024, gross inflow s and gross outflows for forward foreign currency contractswere AUD 308, 720,454
and AUD 314,208,832, respectively. As at 30 September 2023, gross inflows and gross outflows for forward foreign
currency coniracts were AUD 328,101,026 and AUD 320,466,848, respectively.

Forward foreign currency contracts are generally settled net

Financing arrangements include derivative transactions.
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Financial Investments and Associaled Risks (continued)

Liguidity Risk jcontinued)

Expiration or termination of available financing for leveraged positions, and the requirements to post collateral in respect
of changes in the fair value of leveraged exposunes or changes in advance rates o other terms and conditions of the
Sub-Trust's financing arrangements, can result in adverse effects to the Sub-Trust's access to kguidity and ability to
maitain leveraged positions, and rray cause the Sub-Trust 1o incur material losses, The Sub-Trust may borow o
utilize other forms of leverage {on a secured and unsecured basis) for any purpose including. increasing investment
capacity, and covering operating expenses or for the settement of ransactions. However, there is no guaramee that
any such amangements for obtaining leverage will be available, or, if avadable, will ba available on terms and conditions
acceptable to the Sub-Trust. Unfavorable economic condtions also could increase funding costs, limit access to the
capital markets or result in a decision by lenders not to extend credit to the Sub-Trust.

The use of leverage also increases nsk as it magnifes the effect of any volatility in fair values on the Sub-Trust's Net
Aszets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units.

A decline in the market value of the Sub-Trust's assets may have particular adverse consequences in instances where
they have borrowed money on the market value of those assets. Adecrease in the market value of those assets may
result in tha lender (including derivative counterparties) requiring the Sub-Trust to post addtional collateral or otherwize
sell assets at a ime when it may not be in the Sub-Trust's best interest to do so.

Credit Risk

Credit nsk is the risk that cne party to a fmancial investment will cause a financial loss for the cther party by failing to
discharge an cbiigation,

The Investment Advisors have adopted procedures to reduce credt risk related o its dealings with counterparties
of issuers in the Sub-Trust. Before transacting, the Investment Advisors or their related parties evaluate both credit-
worthiness and reputation by conducting a credit analysis of the party, their business and reputation. The credit risk
of approved counterparties or isswers is then monitored on an ongaing basis, including periadic reviews of financial
statements and interim financial reports as needed.

In order to reduce exposure to credit losses, some over-the-counter dernvative agreements entered inte by the Sub-Trust
permit netting of transacions ansing under such agreements, excluding those with counterparies executing only spot
foreign exchange contracts, Vhile such netting rights do not result in an offset of reported aszets and kabilities, they
do provide for the reduction of cred®t risk on favorable over-the-counter transactions with a single counterparty to the
extent of the value of unfaverable over-the-counter transachons with the same countesparty upon the eccurence of an
event of defaull or termination event as all over-the-counter transactions with the counterparty under such agreement
are terminated and amounts owed from and amounts payable to the counterparty are setied on a net basis.

Debt securities are subject to the risk of issuwer’s or a guarantor’s inability to meet principal and interest payments on
its obligations and are subject to price volatility due to factors such as interest rate sensitivity, market perception of the
cricitworthiness of the issuer, and genoral market liquidity.

The Sub-Trust is subject to a nurmber of ricks relating to the insolvency, administration, liquidation or other formal
praotection from creditors (Minsolvency”) of the Custodan or any sub-custodian / Trustee. These nsks incude without
[Emitation:

i The logs of all cash held with the Custedian or sub-custodian / Trustee which is not being treated as client
moaney both at the level ofthe Custodian and any sub-custodians [ Trustes (“client money™).

in. The loss of all cash which the Custodian of sub-custodian / Trustee has failed to treat as client money in
accordance with procedures (if any) agreed with the Sub-Trust,

in, The loss of some or all of any securities held on Sub-Trust which have not been properly segregated and so
identfied bath at the level of the Custodsan and any sub-custodians / Trustee (Trust Assets”) or cBent money
held by or with the Custodian or sub-custodian f Trustee,

i The loss of some or all assets due to the incorrect operation of accounts by the Custodian or sub-custodian
I Trustes or due to the process of identifying and transferring the relevant Trust Assets andfor client money
including any deduction to meet the administrative costs of an inschency.

V. Lossas causad by prolonged delays in receiving transfers of balances and regaining control over the relevant
assets.

=3
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Financial Investments and Associaled Risks (continued)

Sredit Risk {continued)

An insolvency could cause severe disruption to the Sub-Trust's investment activity. In some circumstances, this could
caugse the Investment Manager to temporarily suspend the calculation of the MAY and dealing in Linits,

The clearing and depository operations for the Sub-Trust's security transactions are mainly concentrated with the
Custodian. At 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023, substantially all cash and cash equivalents, balances dus
from broker and investments are placed in custody with the Custodian (with the exception of the Time Deposits which

may be held with a third pamty custodian) or with the underfying broker,

A 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023, the following financial assets ware exposad to credit risk; derivative
financial assats, cash and cash equivalents and other receivables. The canrying amounts of fnancial assats best reflact
the maximum counterparty credt risk exposure at the reporting date,

The maxirmuem edposure to credt nsk (exchuding notional values on forward foreign currency contracts) as at the
reporting date can be analyzed as follows. Amounts in the table below are based on the market value,

30-Sep-2024 30-5ep2023
Instrument Typs* ALUD ALID
Cach and cash equivalents 4 £04 106 14,981 561
Interest recen able 24175 17428
Due from brakers
Collateral amounts 4 520,000 1163847
Forward fareign curmency confracts 2432 617 542
Racderpbie for irmrsimants $old 502 BRY 1,336 365
Recesabie for Urls subscribed BTEA23 ToB 4TS
Ofner agasls 165 542 37023
Total 13,318 024 18,280,144

* O et MTvESam B DORDAMICS BNe f0f NG 7 1T 1ADIE Sec [hiy' 00 Mol Expose S Subes Trust [ irect creol nik

The Master Fund has the following exposure o issuer eredt risk (as a percentage of total market value of the Master

Fund).

Security ratings, if any, are cbtained from SEPMoody's/Fitch Investor Service.

3-Sep02d  I0Sep-2023

Rating % S
A 1531 [
BEE 58,58 BEOT
B8 1.56 81
=] 20 1584
Mot Reted 2162 2144
Total 100.00% 100.00%

The table abowve indicates the credit quality of the Master Fund's investments. Counterpartes or issuers are rated

aither investrment grade in their own right or if net rated then an entity in the corporate family ree has such a rating
and the Credit Risk Management and Advisory department of the Investment Manager believes there is strong implicrt
suppart from the rabed entity to the counterparty of issuer, The Investment Advisors have a credit policy in place and
the exposure bo credit risk is monftored on an ongoing basis.
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Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
Sredit Risk {continued)

A credit default swap is an agreement that involves one party making a stream of payments to another party n exchange
for the right to receive protection on a reference securty or obligation, As a seller of protection, the Sub-Trust generally
receives a payment stream throughout the term of swap. provided that there is no credit event. in addition, if the Sub-
Trusst salls protection through a credit default swap, the Sub-Trust could suffer a loss because the value of the reference
obligation may be less than the prersum payments received. Upon the occurrence of a specific credit event, the Sub-
Trust, as a seller of credit protection, may be required to take possession of the defaulted reference obligation and
pay the buyer an amount equal to the notional amount of the swap in a physical seifled trade. The Sub-Trust may also
pay a net settlement amount in the form of cash or securities equal to the notional ameunt of the swap reduced by the
recovery value of the reference obligation in a cash seltled trade. Recovery values are at times established through
the credt event auction process in which market paicipants are ensured that a transparent price has been set for the
defaulted security or obligation. In addition, the Sub-Trust is entitled to a return ofany assets. which have been pledged
a3 collateral to the counterparty. The notional amount of the Sub-Trust's credit default swaps, If any, is disclosed in
the Schedules of Investments. There were no credit default swaps as at 30 September 2024 and 30 Septermber 2023,

The Sub-Trust had no drect counterparty or issuer credit sk greater than 5% of the Met Assets Attributable Holders of
Redeemable Participating Uinits as at 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023

The Sub-Trust measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure at default and
loss given default. Management consider both historical analysis and forward looking infermation in determining any
expected credit loss. Management consider the probability of default to be close to zers as the counterparties have a
strong capacity to meel their contraciual obligations in the near term, A% a result, no loss allowance has been recognized
based on 12-month expected credit losses as any such impainment would be wholly insignificant to the Sub- Trust.

For tha Master Fund the following table sets forth concentrations greater than 5% of NAW

30 -Sep203d 0 -Sep-2023
% of Met Assets of

Concentration Master Fund

Madquans Group GED T
I alonal A ctraka Bank Lid 641 |
Austraba & New Zealand Barkong Group Lid 633 S48
Commonwaalin Bank aof Australia A 553
AME Lid -~ -y |
Ampod Lid ~ 5 14

*Amiunt 1 b3 Tan %

The Master Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure at default and
loss given default. Management consider both historical analysis and forward locking information in defermining any
expected credit loss. Management consider the probability of default to be close to zero as the counterparties have a
strong capacity to meet their contractual obligations in the near term. A% a result, no loss allowance has bBeen recognised
based on 12-month expected credit losses as any such impainment would be wholly insignificant to the Master Fund.

Additional Risks

Additional rsks include. but are net lirmited to the following:
(i Capital Risk Managemerni

The capital of the Sub-Trest is represented by the Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units.
The amaunt of the MNet Assets Attnbutable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units can change significantly on a
daily bagis as the Sub-Trust is subject to daily subseriptions and redermptions at the discretion of Unithalder, The Sub-
Trust's objective when managing capstal is to safeguard the Sub-Trust's ability to continue as a going concem in order
to provide returns for Unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a streng capital base to support the
development of the investmant actvities of the Sub-Trust,
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Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
Additional Risks (continued)
() Concentration Risk

The Sub-Trust may invest in a limited number of investments and investment themes. A consequence of a limited
number of nvestments is that performance may be more favorably or unfaverably affected by the performance of an
indiidual imvestmant.

(i) Dperaticnal Risk

Operational risk is the potential for loss caused by a deficiency in information, commaunications, transaction precessing
and settlement, and accounting systems. The Sub-Trust's service providess, as shown in Note 7, maintain controls and
procedures for the purpose of helping to manage operational risk. Reviews of the sendce levels of service providers
are performed on a regular basis by the Investment Advisors. Mo assurance is given that these measures will be 100%
effective.

(i) Legal, Tax and Regulatory Risks

Legal, tax and regulatory changes could oocur during the duration of the Sub-Trust which may adversely afect the
Sub-Trust.

With respect to tax, the Sub-Trust may be subject to taxation on capital gaing, imMerest and dividends in certain
junisdictions where the Sub-Trust invests,

The interpretation and applicability of the tax law and regulations by tax authoribes at trmes may not be clear or
consistent. Tax obligations where probable and estimable are recorded as liabilibes. However, some tax obligations
are subject to uncertainty and may result in additional tax Bebilities, interest and penalties based on future actions,
interpretations or judgments of theze suthornties covering curent and past tax positions. Accounting standards ey
also change, creating or removing an cbligation for the Sub-Trust to accrue for a potential tax Eability. Conseguently, it
i5 possible that certain potential tax obligations which cumently are not probable may become o which may result in
additional tax Eabilites for the Sul-Trust in the future and these additional liabilites may ba material. Because of the
foregoing uncertainties, the NAV may not reflect the tax liabiities ultimately borne by the Sub-Trust, including at the
time of any subscrptions, redemptions or exchanges of interests in the Sub-Trust, which could have an adversa impact
on investors at that time.

Additional detadls ofnisk not disclosedin these financial statements can be found in the Sub-Trust's Offening Memorandum.
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Credit Instituti ons

Az at 30 Septermber 2024 and 30 September 2023, all cash and cash equivalents and amounts due frombo brokers
wera held by the following credit institutions with a credit rating of A or higher. Cradit institution ratings are cbtained from
SEP's f Moody's Investors Sarvice ! Fitch Ratings and are unaudited.

Asguts 30-Sep-2024 3 2023
% af Nat % of Met
Counterparty AUD Assels AUD Asasts
BMF Panbas Sa™ £ 5TT 0T 071 = -
Brown Erothers Harmiman £ Co (! = = 14,883 537 237
Brown Brothers Hamman & Co & 26 B53 [T - -
JPidongan Chigge £ Co s 90 375 00z E =
Skandnavska Enskida Ganken AERT? - - H5 619 IR
[ Simatommn Mitsis Bankng Cofperabon - — 2,715 0.008
Total cash and cash squivalents 4554 106 0.7y 14,881 851 i
Cus Fom brokees
Augtral & New JTaalarnd Barking Group Lid 580 000 .08 - =
Barcdigs Bank PLC = 122 647 0oy
B Fanbas 54 = = Fel g .04
HSELC Bank FLC = - 450000 0.07
Maongan Stanley 2010 000 031 - -
Matwest Markets PLC - - e, a0 0.0
Standand Chartered Bank £ h30, 000 1] Q:f -+ =
Total due from brokers 4 520,000 K] 1,153 947 0AT
7 Tirres Deeport
B Uupacted - Cudodin cagh accourd
W Pl e bl BEasld ForonBers] B Bk a0 005N
m Ragrited - cash oolaie Bl To Sarecar RRaigh CUTENSY (O EEIL
Liabilities J0-Seép-2024 ] 2023
% of Met % of Net
Counte AUD Asgets AUD Asngets
Lupe by Drodoarstt
Clilank b § 0EQ 00 016 = =
Faberirst Markets PLC 1150000 nig = o
Tatal due ta brakers 2.2 10,000 0.34 - —

MRewniied - canh cobabesl du Torward foesign comensy oanfrach

Exchange Rates

The following exchange rates (against AUD) were used to convert the investments and other aszsats and liabiliies

denominated in curmencies other than ALD:

30 Sep-2024 W -Sep-2023
Euwrg (ELR) - 0606977
Japaness Yen [JPY) e 234003 G5 TR 50T
Lirsted States Dollar (LSDY .EGET S0 541150

Solt Commissions

The Sub-Trust may pay commissions for execution anly andlior for execution and investment research. The Sub-Trust
did not othensise enter into any third party soft commission arangemants for the years ended 30 September 2024 and

30 September 2023,

Contingent Liabil ities

There were no contingent liabilities as at 30 September 2024 and 30 Septermber 2023

Subsequent Events

Mo events occumed subsequent to 30 September 2024 that would require adjustment to, or disclosure in these financial

statements,
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G3 Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2024

Indemnilications
The Sub-Trust may enter into contracts that contain a variety of indemnifications, The Sub-Trust's maximum exposure

under these arrangements is unknown. Howewver, the Sub-Trust has not had prior claims or loszes pursuant to these
contracts.

Approval of the Financial Statements

Management has approved the financial statements on 19 December 2024 and the fnancial statements may not be
amended after issuance.

Eal

177/299



EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o o o =X =N )

G35 Australia Hybrid Securities Fund

Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2024

Ooooooooooooooooooad

% of
Holdings! Fair Value Het
Units  Description AUD Assets
Investment Fund*
Australian Dollar
3182507  Awstralia Enhanced Incorme Fund Il - Class 10 (Acc), ALD shares 542,417,922 99,89
Total Investment Fund 42417922 99,449
Forward Forelgn Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging Purposes
Unrealized %% of
Mat urity Amount Amount Gain Het
Date Currency ht  Cumency Sold Counterparty AUD Assets
15002024 ALD 621,795 usD 414,448 Barclays Bank PLC 24,523 0.01
15M0/2024 ALD 1,027,196 LsD 680,642 Morgan Stanley & Co 46,303 0.0
18102024 AJD 3,262,537 wsh 2.155,839 HSBC Bank PLC 155,698 .03
Australia & New Zealand
15M10/2024 ALD 4,705,276 (L= 3,199,212 Banking Group Ltd G4, 803 0.01
1TH0r024 ALD 78,846 JPY 7,731,523 NatWest Markets PLC 1,780 0.00
17H002024 ALD 81,755 JPY TET1, 818 State Street Bank & Trust Co. 4,292 0.00
Australia & New Zealand
171072024 AJD 110,827 JPY 10,757,340 Banking Group Ltd 2,278 0.00
1702024 ALID 193,157 JPY 18,378,018 Westpac Banking Corporation 7,591 0.00
1702024 ALID 873,885 JFY 85,6358, 454 HSBC Bank PLC B,863 0.00
17110/2024 JPY 1,584 635,580 AUD 15,058,004 MatWest Markets PLC 1,043,318 0.18
171072024 JEY 1,584,535 580 AUD 15,057,961 Citibank MA 1,043 351 0.18
Total Unreafized Galn on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 9i7 0.38
Unrealized %o of
Maturity Amount Amount Loss Net
Date Currency ﬁh‘. Cumren Sold Count AUD  Assets
TTAWIE4 AJD 361,090 JPY 37,509,152 Cibbank % (18,555) 10,00}
1702024 JPY 7,671,818 usD 54,397 MatWWest Markets PLC (927) {0.00)
17M0/2024 JPY 12,214 625 ALD 125,030 Westpac Banking Corporation {1,687} (0,00}
171072024 JPY 113,227,363 AUD 1.171,604 State Street Bank & Trust Co. (28,328} (0.0}
151072024 UsD 520457 AUD 4TR, 77T UBSAG (16,258) {0.00)
151072024 uUsD BITATT AUD 1,300,928 BNP Paribas {36,204} {0.01)
15102024 usD 2332525 AUD 3.453,577 HEBC Bank PLC (52,1100 {0.01)
Australia & New Zealand
1510/2024 usD 10,915,225 AUD 16532617 Banking Group Lid (802,383} (0.13)
151072024 usD 82832 768 AUD 122,337,144 Morgan Stanley & Co (2,964 542) (046}
15/10/2024 usD 82 659 904 AUD  122550,933 Standard Chartered Bank (2 860878} {0 46)
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Furposes {6,923, 182) {1.08)
The sccompamying nodes fom an mbegml part of Bhe fnanoal Saternents ]
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G5 Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2024

Yo of

Fair Value Het

Total Invesiments AUD Assets

Total Investment Fund 542 417,922 29.98
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging

Purposes 2432917 0.38
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Clazs Hedging

Purposes (6,823, 18 {1.08)

Other Assets and Liabdties 4.571.7! 0.7

Het Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemabl e Participating Units 647,490,449 100.00

*  Represents affiliated holding.

Currency Abbreviations:
AUD Australian Dollar
JP Japanese Yen

usp United States Dollar

The ICELDIMpRMyHY NSRS PO &N T :I"'_','.'IE part of She Tnancal sSabernents !
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G 3 Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2023

W of
Holdings! Fair Value Het
Units  Description AUD  Assets
Investment Fund*
Australian Dollar
3485744 Australia Enhanced Incorme Fund Il - Class 10 (acc), AUD shares 643 57 2861 98.23
Total Investment Fund 643,57 2,861 9823
Forward Forelgn Currency Contracts held for Portfollo Hedging Purposes.
Unreatized h of
Iat urity Amount Amount Gain Het
Date Currency Bought  Curmrency Sold Counterparty AUD Assets
041002023 AUD 25,366 JPY 2420,743 HSBC Bank PLC ] 0.00
Total Unrealized Galn on Forward Forelgn Currency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging
Purposes a6 0.00
Unrealized s of
it urity Amount Amount Loss Het
Date Currency Bought __ Currency Sold Counterparty AUD  Assets
DAMO/2023 JBY 4,982 670 ALD 52,428 HSEC Bank PLC {401} (0.0}
002023 uso 601,362 AUD 943,258 HSBC Bank PLC {5.345) (1
Total Unreallzed Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging
Purposes {5,750) {0.00)
Forward Forelgn Cumrency Contracts held for Class Hedging Purposes
Unrealized % of
Miatuarity Amount Arnount Galn Het
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty AUD Assets
2023 ALD 984,335 LsD 628,623 HSEBC Bank PLC 5504 0.00
20112023 ALD 2654300 snD 1,730,238 Morgan Stanley & Co 3a8 0.00
221172023 ALD 35,637 JPY 3,381,612 Morgan Stanley & Co a3 0.00
221172023 AUD 110,287 JPY 10,316,970 MatWest Markets PLC 1,858 0,00
212023 ALD 552,243 JPY 51,258,001 Westpac Banking Corp 13,474 0,00
22112023 ALD 1,187 616 JPY 112833,300 State Street Bank & Trust Co. 1,658 0.00
Australia & New Zealand
151172023 usD 577,587 AUD 896,984 Banking Group Lid 2,453 0.00
2141172023 uso 1,138,540 AUD 1,765,437 HSBC Bank PLC 8,838 0,00
Total Unreadized Galn on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 3 456 0.00
Unrealized e of
Maturity Amount Amount Loss Met
Date Currency Bought  Cumrency Sold Counterparty AUD  Assets
201172023 ALD 752628 uso 487,485 UBSAG {6,363} 0,00}
Australia & New Zealand
211172023 AUD 2147723 UED 1,382,826 Banking Group Ltd {5,282} (0,00}
2312023 JPY 2125827116 AUD 22915685 MatWest Markets PLC (570,674) (0.08)
221172023 JPY 2141570629 AUD 23,084,849 HSBC Bank PLC (575.414) (0.05)
29112023 uso 86,512,294 AUD 134,915,999 Barclays Bank PLC {54,088} {0.01}
212023 usD BE612,.294 AUD 135,024, 739 BNP Parbas 58 (172807} (002}
Total Unreadized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
PUrposes 1,304,614 21

The accompamying notes fom an mtegml part of e Inancal gaterments
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G 3 Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2023

Yo of
Fair Value Het
Total Invesiments AUD Assels
Total Investment Fund 543 572 861 2823
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging
Purposas BE {0.00)
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging
Purposes (5,750) {0,000
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 34456 0.0
Tokal Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes (1,394 6514) {0.21)
Other Assets and Liabilities 12 536,267 1.87
Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units 655,143 306 100,00

Regresents affiliated holding.

Currency Abbreviations:
AUD  Australian Dollar
JPY Japanese Yen

usD United States Dollar

The ICELDIMpRMyHY NSRS PO &N T :I"'_','.'IE part of She Tnancal sSabernents ]
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2025
711,842,463.60 68,244,336,985
10,323,042.77 989,670,110
41,329,760.80 6,382,554,960
306,521,350.49 29,386,201,871
2,933,092,074
186,108,781.00 28,740,779,050
8,675,315.89
37,037,920.38
357,137.11
17,730,070.69
4.76 735
8.28 794
8,213
10.50 1,622
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2025

187,117,965.90
5,051,655

37.04
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18

3,090,608,866.05
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328

23 103

2025 31
154.43
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UFJ S.A.

2023 12 31

2023 2022

32.1,32.3 2,935,193,869 453,281,989  3,825,986,159 590,847,043

3,16,32.1,32.3 3,616,724,062 558,530,697  4,284,596,331 661,670,211

1,603,412,205 247,614,947  2,229,417,660 344,288,969

2,013,311,857 310,915,750  2,055,178,671 317,381,242

32.1,32.3 7,905,238 1,220,806 41,095,998 6,346,455
4,32.1,32.3 2,738 423 2,646 409
5 2,742,761 423,565 2,550,486 393,872

6 690 107 534 82

7,16 75,461,935 11,653,587 56,886,270 8,784,947

8 6,638,031,293  1,025,111,173  8,211,118,424 1,268,043,018
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UFJ S.A.
2023 12 31

2023 2022
16,32.1  2,072,466,179 320,050,952  2,665,200,741 411,586,950
2,072,466,179 320,050,952  2,665,200,741 411,586,950
0 0 0 0
9,16,32.1  3,815,550,822 589,235,513  4,852,402,519 749,356,521
3,815,550,822 589,235,513  4,852,402,519 749,356,521
0 0 0 0
10 1,229,105 189,811 2,511,756 387,890
11,16 58,526,361 9,038,226 127,795,347 19,735,435
39,457,074 6,093,356 10,289,047 1,588,938
12 37,241,146 5,751,150 8,258,300 1,275,329
13 2,215,928 342,206 2,030,747 313,608
14 187,117,966 28,896,627 187,117,966 28,896,627
15 364,038,890 56,218,526 302,480,181 46,712,014
15 1,762,158 272,130 325,518 50,270
97,882,738 15,116,031 62,995,349 9,728,372
17 6,638,031,203  1,025,111,173  8,211,118,424  1,268,043,018
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UFJ S.A.
2023 12 31
2023 2022
18,32.1 88,703 13,698 75,775 11,702
88,703 13,698 75,775 11,702
21 52,561,295,560 8,117,040,873 44,808,157,318 6,919,723,735

189/299



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UFJ S.A.
2023 12 31

2023 2022
305,406,272 47,163,891 133,835,051 20,668,147
419,480 64,780 1,609,626 248,575
54,460,452 8,410,328 73,318,828 11,322,627
(207,634,601)  (32,065,011)  (85,089,296)  (13,140,340)
(505, 331) (78,038)  (19,419,339)  (2,998,929)
(4,270,379) (659,475)  (1,835,161) (283,404)
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
22 120,905,992 18,671,512 134,826,564 20,821,266
(33,509,033)  (5,174,800)  (44,141,518)  (6,816,775)
4,397,406 679,001 5,972,209 922,288
23 7,382,356 1,140,057 8,565,956 1,322,841
(60,136,136)  (9,286,823)  (63,758,784)  (9,846,269)
25,26 (25,051,516)  (3,868,706)  (22,559,016)  (3,483,789)
(20,355,899)  (3.143,561)  (17,925,916)  (2,768,299)
(2,584,124) (399,066)  (2,247,688) (347,110)
(1,545,058) (238,603)  (1,360,468) (210,097)
27,31 (35,084,620)  (5,418,118)  (41,199,768)  (6,362,480)
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(1,275,260) (196,938) (1,454,125) (224,561)

24 (2,519,709) (389,119) (2.,730,496) (421,670)
12,28.1  (33,421,187) (5.161,234)  (21,048,460) (3.250,514)
99,596,100 15,380,626 64,977,102 10,034,414

28.2 (1,713,362) (264,594) (1,981,753) (306,042)
97,882,738 15,116,031 62,995,349 9,728,372
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UFJ S.A.

2023 12 31

1.1.
UFJ S.A.
1974 11
1996

2005 10

2006

2007
70 30

2008 28 49,080
1,817,968.52 37,117,968.52
92.25
63.72 28.53
2014
12-13
1993
907648
2016
UFJ S.A.
2017 31 UFJ
S.A. 100

1.2.
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1.3.
2.1.
2.2.
2023 12 31
1.27480000
0.00709320
1.10465000
2.3.
2023
2022

2.4.
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2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

1.25

2.5

1997 12 16

2023 12 31

10
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2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

2.13.

2023 2022

2,202,093,277 2,947,074,206
1,414,630,785 1,337,522,125
3,616,724,062 4,284,596,331

2,738 2022 2,646

195/299



2023 12 31

3,363,209
960,211

2,402,998

22,234,272
20,288,833

1,945,439

25,597,480

5,749,717,292

2023 12 31

90,062 (25,795)
39,708 0
50,354  (25,795)
1,301,875
1.301.875
0 0
1,391,937  (25,795)
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117,858 3,545,334 3,306,338 238,997
33,649 1,033,568 946,856 86,711
84,209 2,511,766 2,359,480 152,286

710,988 24,247,135 21,743,371 2,503,764

710,988 22,301,696 19,797,932 2,503,764

0 1,945,439 1,945,439 0

828,846 27,792,469 25,049,709 2,742,761

2023 2022
690 534
690 534
2023 2022
30,925,318 16,263,642
17,079,967 14,158,477
691,916 656,139
4,411,547 4,377,532
6,317,669 6,922,186
10,617,073 11,432,600
1,574,684 1,576,343
881,536 195,524
0 0
567,781 834,146
0 0
2,394,444 469,681
75,461,935 56,886,270
4,585,122,868 2022
2022 12 31
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10
2023 2022
971,611 528,787
257,494 1,982,969
1,229,105 2,511,756
11
2023 2022
8,561,263 9,571,741
7,790,425 10,319,486
15,081,748 13,423,755
0 0
15,411 29,171
» 0 26,800,870 87,606,762
276,644 74,489
* 0 6,769,943
58,526,361 127,795,347
Q) 2022 12 31
12
2018 2016
21 L.G.-A60
2023 12 31
13
2023 2022
2,215,928 2,030,747
2,215,928 2,030,747
14
2023 12 31 5,002,575

49,080 187,117,966
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2023 12,597,421 289,882,760 325,518
2022 12 31 0 0 62,995,349
0 0 0
2022 0 13,380,000 (13,380,000)
2017 0 (8,700,000) 8,700,000
0 53,800,000 (53,800,000)
3,078,709 0 (3,078,709)
2023 12 31 15,676,130 348,362,760 1,762,158
10
2023 12 31 58,411,675 2022 53,731,675
2022 28 13,380,000 2023
2017 8,700,000
2023 12 31
2023
2019 9,981,000
2020 10,911,000
2021 11,874,000
2022 12,265,675
2023 13,380,000
2023 12 31 58,411,675
2023 12 31
2023 2022

2,982,750,453 3,349,527,021
18,601,641 15,563,726
3,001,352,094 3,365,090,747
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17
2023 12 31
5,614,636,504
18
19
20

2023 2022 12 31

21
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2023 2022
1,942,039,398 2,491,655,095
339,089,048 475,836,557
8,300,550 6,590,039
2,289,428,996 2,974,081,691
2013 26

4,585,122,870 2022

2023 2022
88,703 75,775
2023 2022
703,210 1,698,764
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22
2023 2022
27,782,396 27,477,944
84,167,200 86,642,608
4,634,416 18,149,234
1,060,166 1,059,205
3,261,813 1,497,573
120,905,991 134,826,564
1992 17 69 (2
23
2023 2022
93,745 365
5,410,115 4,308,298
874,597 1,335,997
* 217,437 2,404,067
779,823 513,673
6,639 3,556
7,382,356 8,565,956

™

200/299



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

24
2023 2022
393,238 701,672
1,691,949 802,718
77,704 7,812
356,818 1,218,294
2,519,709 2,730,496
25
2023 2022
33 34
95 87
45 45
173 166
26
2023 2022
6,789,725 6,267,400
881,875 853,614
5,413,786 5,413,786
2023 2022 12 31
27
2023 2022
517,602 637,273
1,192,339 1,132,763
6,968,897 5,280,881
8,808,345 6,895,172
1,969,623 1,687,297
5,660,765 5,739,620
3,940,649 3,940,850
5,138,430 15,057,271
586,992 525,935
202,482 122,970
98,496 179,736
35,084,620 41,199,768
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28.1.

28.2.

29
2020 12 31

100

8212

100

30

100,000

100,000

107 (1)

2024
179 (1)
0.8
2016
0.8
0.8
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2023 2022
24,363,057 15,407,163
9,058,130 5,641,297
33,421,187 21,048,460
2023 2022
1,641,509 1,905,898
71,853 75,855
1,713,362 1,981,753
33 100-
2014 59
2014 49 2015 12 18
20,000
12
2024
2015
2018
2018 180 (1)

202/299



31

2023 12 31
) 2022 4,115,522
2023

2023
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5,327,640 (5,716,313
4,241,878
2020

2023 2022
250,097 241,485
74,486 67,237
30,055 26,691
354,638 335,413

12 31 3402
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32
32.1.

2023 12 31

2,935,193,869 0 0 2,935,193,869
2,202,093,277 1,414,630,785 0 3,616,724,062
7,905,238 0 0 7,905,238

0 0 2,738 2,738

0 0 0 0
5,145,192,384  1,414,630,785 2,738  6,559,825,907
2,072,466,179 0 0 2,072,466,179
3,815,550,822 0 0 3,815,550,822
5,888,017,001 0 0 5,888,017,001
88,703 0 0 88,703

88,703 0 0 75,775
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2022 12 31

3,825,986,159 0 0 3,825,986,159
2,947,074,206  1,337,522,125 0 4,284,596,331
41,095,998 0 0 41,095,998

0 0 2,646 2,646

0 0 0 0
6,814,156,363  1,337,522,125 2,646  8,151,681,134
2,665,200,741 0 0 2,665,200,741
4,852,402,519 0 0 4,852,402,519
7,517,603,260 0 0 7,517,603,260
75,775 0 0 75,775

75,775 0 0 75,775
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32.2.
2023 12 31
1,732,460,231 0 0 1,732,460,231 12,817,030
1,589,457,158 0 0 1,589,457,158 3,516,149
3,321,917,389 0 0 3,321,917,389 16,333,179
1,738,235,564 0 0 1,738,235,564 12,798,135
1,253,765,427 0 0 1,253,765,427 27,860,760
2,992,000,991 0 0 2,992,000,991 40,658,895

2023 12 31
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1,899,365,978 602,914 0 1,899,968,892 58,671,005

276,202,684 0 0 276,202,684 1,460,089

2,175,568,662 602,914 0 2,176,171,576 60,131,094

1,951,149,778 583,601 0 1,951,733,379 58,650,622

3,429,660,974 0 0 3,429,660,974 80,871,843

5,380,810,752 583,601 0 5,381,394,353 139,522,465
2022 12 31 2022 12 31
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32.3.

2023 12 31

2023

2,935,193,869
58,781,214
2,935,193,869

3,616,724,062
335,748,290
53,432,726
3,041,245,689
172,124,952

2022

3,825,986,159
89,447,866
3,825,986,159

4,284,596,331
276,865,118
660,289,269
2,933,839,603
374,268,606

14,172,405 39,333,735
7,905,238 41,095,998
10,844 26,460,119
7,894,383 9,368,347
11 5,267,532

0 0

2,738 2,646
2,738 2,646

690 534

690 534

6,559,826,597

8,151,681,668
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32.4.
2023 12 31
2023 2023
3,386,292 96,936
81,465,147 1,102,919
264,357,581 3,211,972
1,383,251,211 8,405,204
1,589,457,158 3,516,149
3,321,917,389 16,333,179
2022 12 31
2022 2022
46,212,155 253,378
143,248,397 2,129,579
210,566,686 3,156,846
1,499,941,654 53,131,205
276,202,684 1,460,089

2,176,171,576 60,131,094
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2023 2022
6,638,031,293 8,211,118,424
97,882,738 62,995,349
1.47 0.77
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKIMG (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
BALAMCE SHEET
December 31, 2023

{in LU=D)
ASSETS

Motes 2023 2022
Cash, balances with central banks
and post office banks 321,323 293515308569 38255986159
Loans and advances o credit institutions 3,16, 32.1., 323, 3.616.724.082 4.284.596.301
a) repayable on demand 1.603.412.205 2222417660
b} other loans and advances 2013.311.857 205517867
Loans and advances o customers 321, 323 T.905.238 41.095.938
Shares and cther variable-yield securities 4,321, 32.3. 2.738 2,645
Fixed Assets 5 2.742.761 2,550,486
Other assets -] 650 534
Prepaymaents and accrued income T.16 T5.481.935 SE.BEE.2TO
TOTAL ASSETS a8 £.638.031.253 8.211.118.424

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.
=12
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBCURG) S.A.
BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2023
{in USD)
= contmued -

LIABILITIES

Motes 2023 2022
Amounts owed to credit institutions 16, 321, 2072466179 2.665.200.T41
a) repayable on demand 207246868179 2865 200741
b) with agreed maturity dates o 0
Amounts owed to customers 9,16, 32.1, 3.815550.822 4.852.402.519
a) repayable on demand 3815550822 4 852 402 519
b) with agreed maturity dates o 0
Cther liabilities 10 1.229.10% 2.511.756
Accruals and deferred income 11,186 58.526.381 127.795.347
Pravisions 39.457.074 10.289.047
a) provisions for taxation 12 20146 8.258.300
b) other provisions 13 2215828 2.030.747
Subscribed capital 14 187 117,968 187.117.966
Reserves 15 364,038,890 302.480.181
Result brought forward 15 1.7T62.158 325.518
Profit for the financial year 97,882,738 62,995,349
TOTAL LIABILITIES 17 " 6638031293 T B.211.118424

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.

-13.
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MITSLUEBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKIMG (LUXEMBOURG) S.A
OFF BALAMCE SHEET ITEMS
Decamber 31, 2023

{in LS
Motes 2023 2022
Contingent liabilities 18, 32.1. B8.703 T5.775
of which:
guarantees and assets pledged as
collateral security 83,703 78775
Fiduclary operations 2 52.561.295.560 44.808.157.318

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.

-14.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKIMNG (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Year ended December 31, 2023
{in LS
Motes 2023 2022
Interest receivable and similar income 305406272 133.835.051
af which:
- Megative interast received on amounts owed
to credit institutions and to customers 419,480 1.609.626
- Interest Gain from foreign currency swap 54 480 452 73.318.825
Interest payable and similar charges (207.634.601) (85.089.296)
af which:
- Megative interest paid on loans and advances
and on balances with credit institutions (505.331) (19.419.33%9)
- Interest Loss fram foreign currency swap (4.270.375) (1.835 161)
Imcome from securities 0 0
Income from shares and other variable yield securities i] 0
Commission receivable x2 120.905.992 134.826.564
Commission payable (33.508.033) [44.141.518)
Met profit on financial operations 4,397.408 5.972.209
Other operating income 23 T.382.256 B.565.956
General administrative expenses (80.135.138) (63.758.784)
a) staff costs 25, 26 {25.051.518) (22.559.018)
of which:
wages and salaries (20,355.805) (17 .925.816)
social security costs [2.584.124) (2.247 588)
of which:
- social securly costs relating to pensions (1.545.058) {1.360.458)
b) other administrative expenses 2T, M (35.084.620) (41.1909.763)
Value adjustments in respect of tanglble [1.275.260) {1.454.125)
and intangible assets
Other aperating charges 24 (2.515.70%) (2.730.496)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 12, 284 (32.421.187) {21.048.480)
Profit on ardinany activities after tax 98,556,100 g4 877 102
Other taxes not shawn under the preceding items 28.2 (1.713.362) (1.981.753)
Praofit for the financial year 97.882.738 62.995.349

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5.A

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023

HOTE 1 - GEMERAL

1.1

Corporate matters

Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) 5 4. (the "Bank”) was incorporated in Luxembourg
on April 11, 1974 as a socidld anomyme.,

Om April 1, 1855, the Parent Bank, The Bank of Tokyo, Lid., merged with The Mitsubishi Bank, Limited to form
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi Ltd_, and Bank of Tokyo (Luxembourg) S.4. changed its name to Bank of
Taokyo-Mitsubishi (Luxembourg) 5.4

On October 1, 2005, the indirect shareholder, Mitsubishi Tokyo Financial Group, Inc. (MTFG) merged with UFJ
Holdings, Inc. (UFJ) and formed a new financial group, Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Graup (MUFG).

On January 1, 2008, the Parent Bank, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubsshi, Ltd. merged with UFJ Bank Limited to
form The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd,, and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi (Luxembourg) 5.4 changed its
namea 1o Bank ol Tokya-Mitsubishi UFJ [Luxembourg) S A,

On April 2, 2007, the Bank became a jointly capfalized subsidiary of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation by T0% and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UF.J Ltd. by 30%, which are under the same holding
company Mitsubishi LUFJ Finangial Group (MUFG), Consequently, Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi LIFJ
{Luxembourg) 5.4 changed its name to MITSUBISHI UFJ Global Custody S.4. (MUGC).

On April 28, 2008, MITSLEBISHI UFJ Global Custody 5.8, has issued 48,080 new shares and the capital of the
Bank has been increased by USD 1,817 968,52 The total subscribed share capital is currently set at

USD 37.117.965,52. The two major shareholders of the Bank hold 52,25% of the capital, Mitsubishi UFJ Trust
and Banking Corporation by 63,72% and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Lid. by 28 53%

Om August 7, 2014, MITSUBISHI UF.) Global Custedy 5. A. has established an external branch located at
Ormmande House, 12-13 lower Lesson Street, Dublin 2, Ireland. Mitsubishi UFJ Global Custody S A, Dublin

Branch is registered as credit institution pursuant to UE Regulation, 1803, under the number 807648,

On May 1, 2016, MITSUBISHI UFJ Global Custody S 4. has changed its name to MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR
SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A (MIEL).

.18.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- continued -

Cn May 31, 2017, Mitsubishi UF.J Trust and Banking Corporation obtained 100% of the voting shares of Mitsubishi
UFJ Investor Services & Banking {(Luxembourg) 5.4

Thie members of the Board of Directors ane Senior Executrves of Mitsubishi LIFJ Trust and Banking Corparation Group
and Independent Directors. The business policy and valuation principles, unless prescribed by the legal requirements
existing in Luxembourg, ane determined and monitared by the Board of Directors n accordance with those appled in
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group.

Matur in

The obgect of the Bank is the undertaking for its own account, as well as for the account of third parties either wathin or
sutside the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg, of any banking or financial eperations, as well as all ather aperations,
whether indusbrial or commercial or in real estate, which directly or indirectly relate to the main object described above.

Maore specifically, the Bank concentrates its activities on investment management services.

A significant volume of the Banks transactions is concluded directly or indirectly with companies of Mitsubishi LIFJ

Financial Group.

Annual accounts

The Bank prepares its annual accounts in US Dollars (USD), the currency in which the capital is expressed. The Bank's
accounting year coincides with the calendar year.

The Bank's Beard of Dinectars has made an assessment of the Bank's abilty to continue as a going concerm and 15
satisfied that the Bank has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future, Furthermore, the Beard of

Directors is not aware of any matenal uncertaintes that may cast significant doubt upon the Bank's abikty to continue
as a going concem. Therefore, the annual accounts continwe to be prepared on the going concern basis.

S 18-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- continued -

MNOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

21.

2.2

The Bank prepares its annual accounts under the historical cost principle in accondance with the laws and regulations
in force in the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg and on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the banking
sector in the Grand-Duchy of Lugembourg.

In ohserving these, the follewing significant acoounting policies are applied,

Assets and l@bilites are stated in the balance sheet on the date the amounts concemed become cleared funds, that is,
cn their date of effective transfer,

Egrei )

The Bank maintains a mult-cumency accounting system which records all transactions in the currency or currencies of
the transaction, on the day on which the contract is concluded

Assets and [Ebilites are converted into USD at the spot exchange rates applicable at the balance sheet date. Both
reaksed and unrealised profits and losses arising on revaluabon aré accounted for in the profit and loss account for the
year, except for those resulting from items specifically covered by a forward foreign exchange contract (swap and
hedging forward foreign exchange contract) which are recorded at historical exchange rates.

Revenues and expenses in foreign cumencies are translated into USD daily at the prevailing exchange rates.

At the year-end, all unsettied forward transactions are translated into ISD at the forward rate prewvailing on the Balance
Sheet date for the remaining maturbies.

Results an unsettied forward transactions linkesd to spot transactions and an swap transactions are accrued at the
balance sheet date. In case of unrealised results on positicn covered by foreign exchange swap, these are neutralized
at year end,

The main foreign cumency exchange rates used as at December 31, 2023 are as follows:
1 US0 = 1,27480000 GBF

1 USD = 0,00708320 JPY
1 USD0 = 1,10465000 EUR
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- continued -

Financial instruments dervatves

The Bank's commiments deriving from the dervatives financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, forward rate
agresments, financial futures and options are recordad on the transaction date among the off balance sheet items.

At the year-end, where necessary, a provision is set up in respect of individual unrealised losses resulting from the
revaluation of the Bank's commitments at market value. There is no provision for unrealized losses on forward deals

recorded for the year 2023 (2022 USD 0).

Mo provision is set up in those cases where a financial instrument clearly covers an asset or a liability and economic

unity iz established or where a financial instrurnent i hedged by a reverse transaction o that no cpen pesiion axists,

It is the Bank's policy to establsh specific value adjustments in respect of doubtful and irecoverable debts, as deemed
appropriate by the Board of Directors.

Value adjustrnents, if any, are deducted from the assets to which they relate.

The value adjustments for possible losses on loans and advances, if any, are deducted from the assets to which they
reslate.

islan for i
In accordance with the Luxembourg tax legislation, the Bank can establish a lumg-sum provision for nsk exposures, as
defined in the legislation governing prudential supervision of banks. The purpose of the provision is to take account of
risks which are Bkely to crystalise but which have not vet been identified as at the date of preparation of the annual

accounts.

Pursuant to the Instructions issued by the Direcleur des Confribubions on December 18, 1987, this provision should be
made before taxation and should not exceed 1,25% of the Bank's risk exposures.

The Bank has not constituted any provision as of December 21, 2023 (2022 USD Q)

S
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MITSUEBISHI UFJ INWVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- cantinued -
Transferable securities
Transierable securities are recorded initialty at their purchase price. The average cost methed is used for initial

recogniticn. Value adjustments, calculated as described in note 2.5, or ansing from a diminution of value, ane deducted

from the account balance.

Tangible and intangibl

Tangible and intangible assets are valued at purchase price. The value of tangible and intangible fixed assets with
lirnited useful econemic lves is reduced by value adjustments calculated to write off the value of such assets
systermatically over their useful economic lives as follows:

+ Hardware equipment: 4 years,

«  Software: 4 years and 5 years;

s (ther intangible assets: 5 years,

«  Other tangible assets; 10 years,

*  Goodwll: 5 years.

Taxes

Taxes are accounted for on an accruals basis m the accounts of the year to which they relate. Provision for taxation
cormesponds to the difference between the estimated provisions created by the Bank and the advance payments for the
financial years for which no final tax assessment natices have been receved yet

Prepayment and accrued income

This asset item includes expenditune incurred during the financial year but redating to a subsequent inandial year,

Agcruals and deferred incorme

This liabikty item includes income received during the financial year but relating to a subsequent financial year.

-22-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- continued -

Provisions

Provisions are intended to cover losses or debits the nature of which is clearly defined and which, at the date of the
balance sheet are ether ikely to be incurred or certain to be incurred but uncerain as to their amount or as to the date
on which they will arise.

The Bank's main sireams of revenue are comprised of interests and commissions income. The Bank earns fee and
cormmission income from a wide range of services it provides to its customers.

Revenue is generally recognized when the related services are performed or recognized over the period that the
SENICES ane proveded,

MOTE 3 - LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

Loans and advances to credit institutions other than those repayable on demand, presented at their nominal value
may be analysed according to their remaining maturity as follows:

2023 2022

usD usp

Mat mare than three months 2202093277 2947 074,206
Maore than three months but less than one year 1.414.630.785 1,337 522125
3.616.724.062 4,284 596.331

MOTE 4 - SHARES AND OTHER VARIABLE YIELD SECURITIES

Transferable secunties shown under the item “Shares and other vanable yield securities” consist entirely of unlsted
securities for IS0 2,738 (2022 USD 2 B48).

-23-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- continued -

NOTE & - MOVEMENTS IN FIXED ASSETS

The following movements have occummed in the Bank's fixed assets in the course of the financial year:

FIXED ASSETS:
Gross value at Additions Disposals Exchange Gress value at Cumulative Net value at
the beginning difference the end of the value the end of
of the financial financial year adjustments the financial
year year
uso uso UsD uso usD usD UsD
1. Tangible assets 3363208 50.062 (25.795) 117.858 3.545.334 3.306.338 2365487
a) Hardwane 950,211 38,708 o] 33.649 1.033.568 245 856 56.711
b} Other fiures and fitings,
fiat furniture, equipment and 2402508 50,354 (25.T95) 84,208 2511.766 2,350,480 152,286
vehicles
2. Intangible assets 22,234,272 1.301.875 1] 710,988 24,247 135 21.743.3M 2.503.764
a) Softears 20286833 1.301.875 o 710.588 22,301 895 19.787.932 2503764
b) Goodwill acquired for
valuable
Consideration 1.945.439 0 o o 1.945 439 1.845.439 a
Tatal Fixed Assets 25.597.480 1.391.937 {25.795) 828,848 27.792.469 25.049.709 2.742.761

Goodwll acquired for valuable consideration represents the value of the takecver of part of the client base of ancther insbtution

.24 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decamber 31, 2023
- contmued -

HNOTE & - OTHER ASSETS

.35

2221299

2023 2022
uso usD
Cher assets 630 534
620 S34
HOTE 7 - PREPAYMEMNTS AND ACCRUED INCOME

The Bank's prepayments and accrued income may be analysed as follows:
2023 2022
uso uso
Actrued interest income 30925318 16.263.642
Accrued Interest income on swaps 17.079.8967 14.158.477
Commission from the Management Company 681.916 656,139
Commission on fiduciary operations 4.411.547 4377532
Commissicn on global custady 6.317. 669 6922185
Commission on investment funds 10.617.073 11.432600
Ciher accrued ingome 1.574 654 1.576,343
Cther Commissions 881.538 195524
Cther prepayments o 0
Prepard general expenses 567.781 B34.146
Frepaid income takes ] [i]
VAT recoverable 2384 444 458581
75461 835 55.886.270
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

HNOTEB - FOREIGH CURRENCY ASSETS

At December 31, 2023, the aggregate amount of the Bank's assets denominated in foreign curmrencies,
rransiated into USD, is USD 4.585 122868 (2022 USD 5.745.717.292).

NOTE 9 - AMOUNTS OWED TO CUSTOMERS

As at December 31, 2023, there is no debits other than those repayvable on demand owed to customers,
{as at December 31, 2022 debts ather than repayable on demand amounted to USD O).

HOTE 10 - OTHER LIABILITIES

The Bank's other liabilhes may be analysed as follows:

2023 2022

UusD UsD

Preferentsal creditors gF.61 528787
Sundry creditors 257 484 1.982 959
1.229.105 2511.758
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5 A
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- contmued -

HOTE 11 - ACCRUALS AMD DEFERRED INCOME

The Bank's accruals and deferred income may be analysed as follows:

2023 2022
uso uso
Actrued commission £8.561.263 571,741
Accrued general expenses 7.790.425 10.319.485
Accrued interest expenses 15.081.748 13423755
Deferred income related to commission 1) a
Ciher deferred income 15.411 2817
Meutrakzabion of foréign exchange results on postion covered
by foreign exchange swap (note 2.2) 26.800.870 87,606,762
Cther accrued expenses 276644 74.489
Cther suspense receipts (%) o 6,769,943
58.526.381 127,795,347

{*) Other suspense receipts: Transitory account for suspense receipts payable after the December 31, 2022 to
the retated beneficiary.

NOTE 12 - TAXATION - EXCHANGE DIFFERENCE: DEFERRED TAXATION
The Bank prepares its annual accounts in USD, currency in which its statutary capital is denominated.
In September 2018 the Tax Authorities authorized the Bank to use the USD tax functional currency in
accordance with the Circular L.G.-A no 80 dated June 21, 2018

Consequently, the fiscal and commercial balance sheets are established in the same currency the LISD,
As at December 31, 2023, there is no deferred ta.

.97
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

NOTE 13 - OTHER PROVISIONS

The Bank's other pravisions are made of provision for staff remuneration.

223 2022

ush usD

Provigion for staff remuneration 2215928 2030747
2215928 2030747

HOTE 14 - SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2023, the Bank's subscribed and fully paid up capital amounts to USD 187,117 986 for
2.002.5735 shares of Class A and 43,080 shares of Class B.

NOTE 15 - MOVEMENTS IN RESERVES AND RESULT BROUGHT FORWARD

Legal Other Result brought

reserve reserves forward

uso uso uso

Balance at January 1, 2023 12.587 421 289 882 76D 325518

Profit for the year ended December 31, 2022 0 O 62005 340

Appropriation of profit

- Dividends paid to shareholders 1] 1] 0

- Transfer to reserves for Met Worth Tax 2022 0 12,280,000 (13.380,000)
= Transfer from Reserde for Net Warth Tax

2M7 1] (8.700.000) 8.700.000

- Allocation to Free resanve [1] 53.800.000 (53.800.000)

- Allecation to Legal reserve 3.078.700 0 {3.078.708)

Balance at Decernber 31, 2023 15676130 348,362,760 1762158

.28
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

Under Lusembourg law, the Bank must appropriate to a legal reserve an amownt equivalent to at least 5% of the
annual net profit until such reserve is egqual to 10% of the share capital. This appropriation is made in the
following year, Dastribution of the legal reserve & resticted.

Based on the Luxembourg tax law, the Bank has elected to get a tax credit for all or part of the net worth tax due
for that year. This tax credit is however, imited to the amount of the corporate income tax due for the previcus
year before the imputation of any tax credits. In order to profit from this credit, the Bank must commit itself to
post before the end of the subsequent year an ameunt equal to five times the net worth tax eredd to a special
resarve, which has to be maintained for a period of five years.

As of December 31 2023, the special reserve for net worth tax is included in the Bank's ather reserve for a total
amount of LISD 58411 675 (2022 USD 53.731.675).

As resolved in the Annual General Meeting dated March 28, 2022, the Bank has allocated an amaount of
USD 13.380.000 to special reserve for Met Worth Tax 2022 and reversed the available special resenve for Net

Woorth Tax constituted in 2017 which amounted to LISD 8,700,000,

The accumulated balance of special reserve for Net Worth Taxes states as follows as at December 31, 2023,

2023

Reserve for Met

Worth Tax

Years uso
2019 9.981.000
2020 10,811.000
2021 11.8674.000
2022 12,265 675
2003 13.380.000
Balance at December 31, 2023 8.411.675
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

NOTE 16 - RELATED PARTY BALANCES

As at December 31, 2023, the following balances with related partes are cutstanding

ASSETS

2023 2022
UsD UsD
Loans and advances to credit institutions 2.982.750.453 3348 527.021
Prepayments and acorued income 18.601.641 15.563.726
3,001,352.084 3.365,080.747

LIABILITIES
2023 2022
usD usD
Amounts owed to credit institutions 1.942,039.3838 2.491 555095
Amounts owed 1o customerns 339.080 048 475 836 557
Accruals and deferred income 8,300,550 5,500,030
2,280 428 008 2974081 691

At the request of the Bank, the CSSF has granted a total exemption fior the exposures towards the group
{Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group) in the calculation of large exposure imits, in accordance with the Regulation
{ELJ} Mo 5752013 of June 26, 2013 (Part IV).
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HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

NOTE 17 - FOREIGN CURRENCY LIABILITIES

At December 31, 2023, the aggregate amount of liabalities dencminated in foreign currencies translated into
USD is USD 4 585 122 870 (2022 5.614 636 504).

NOTE 18 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Bank's contingent liabilities may be analysed as follows:

2023 2022

UsD usD

Counter-guarantess msued 83,703 75775
I ——— I ——————8

As at the year-end, there wera no related party balances,

HOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS

The Bank has entered mta certain commitrments which are not disclosed neither in the Balance Sheet nor in the
Off Balance Sheet ltems, but which are significant for the purposes of assessing the financial situation of the
Bank. Details of such commitments are as follows:

2023 2022
usD UsD

Commitments in respect of fiwed rental payments contracted on
buildings TOE.210 1.688.784

As at the year-end, there are no related party balances

..
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HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

HNOTE 20 - OPERATIONS LINKED TO CURRENCY EXCHAMGE RATES, INTEREST RATES AND OTHER MARKET

RATES

The fellowing types of ferward transactions are outstanding as at Decemiber 31, 2023 and 2023

lin i hange

- Forward exchange transactions (Swaps, outrights)

Operations linked to the foreign currency exchange rates are made to a large extent for the purposes. of
covering the existing positions.

HOTE 21 - INVESTMENT MAMAGEMEMNT SERVICES AND UNDERWRITING FUNCTIONS

Management and agency services provided by the Bank include:

= Custody and administration of transferable securities;
- Fiduciary representations;

- Agency functions;

- Partfolic management and advice.

HOTE 22 - COMMISSIONS RECEIVABLE

2023 2022

usD usD

Fees on Investment Funds 27.782.355 27.477.844
Fees on Global custody from Institutional customers 84167200 56642608
Fees on Fiduciary transactions 4,634 416 18.149.234
Fees on Services to Management Company 1,060,166 1.058.205
Cther fees and commissions 3.261.813 1.497 573
120.905.991 134.828 564

.3,

229/299



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

Commissions receivable consist of the following:

Fees on Investment Funds consist of fees and commissions charged to Investment Funds fior custody senvices,
central administration, depositary and cther services. The fees are calculated on the basss of the value of net
assets of the funds under administration.

Fees on Global custody from Institutional customers consist of fees and commassions charged to institutional
custormers for global custody sevices including secunties trade management, seltlerment, corporate actions,
income collection and proxy voling The fees are calculated on the basis of the assets held under custody and
the number of transactions,

Fees on Fiduciary transactions consist of fees and commissions eamed on fiduciary assets including custody
transactians, cash management and fiduciary notes issuance. The fees are calculated on the basis of the

assets hekd under management and the number of transactions,

Fees on Services to Management Company include fees covering functional expenditures and fees for support

sarvices in accordance with the Service Level Agreement

Other fees and commissions include varnous fees such as listing agent fees, guarantee fees, banking services

fees and fund order desk sevices fees,

By application of Article 60(2) of the law of June 17, 1992, on the annual accounts of credit institutions sources
of income have not been analysed by gecgraphical regicn.
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NOTE 23 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2023 2022
UsD uso
Adjustment of Income taxes regarding previous years 93745 385
Adjustment for cCommISSon previous Years 5410115 4,308 288

Income from the adjustment of general expenses
regarding previous years B74.597 13358897
Sub-Custodian refund (%) 217 437 2.404 087
Adjustment of VAT regarding previcus years 779823 513673
Other operating income G.E38 3.558
7.382 356 B.565 056

{*) Sub-Custodian refund: Migration costs refund from Ctibank relating to change of sub-custodian from Brown
Bother Harriman to Ciibank.

NOTE 24 - OTHER OPERATING CHARGES

2023 2022
uso uso

Charges from the adjustment of general
expenses regarding previous years 383.238 T01.872
Commission on previous years 1.651.949 02718
Interest on previous years Fr.704 7.B12
Cthers operating losses 356.818 1.218.204
2.519.708 2,730 496

NOTE 25 - STAFF NUMBERS
The average number o persons employed during the financial year by the Bank is as follows:

2023 2022

Number Number

Senior management 33 34

Middle management a5 a7

Employees _ 45 45
173 186
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HNOTE 26 - MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

The Bank has granted emoluments in respect of the financial year to the members of the managerial body of the

Bank by reason of their responsibilities as follows:

2023 2022

UsD UsD

Senwor management G.788.725 B.287. 400
Of which vaniable remuneration 881.875 853,814

O witich fix remuneration S413.786 5413786

Durmg the financzal year, no pension commitments to the members of the Board of Directors and General
Management were made.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Bank did not grant any advances and credits to the members of the
Beard of Directors and General Management.

NOTE 27 - OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2023 2022

usD usD

Cata charges 97602 G3T2T3
Maintemance 1,182,338 1.132. 763
Membership fees 5.968 857 5.280.881
Frofessional fees 5606 345 G.685.172
Rent and related expenses 1,080,623 1,687,207
Sarvice contracts 5.660.TES 5.730.620
Service fee 3,840,648 3.840.850
System cost 5.135.430 15.057.271
Telecommunication expenses 586 052 5259035
Travellng, moving, business tnps 202 482 122970
Other expenses 05 4508 179.736
35,084,620 41.185. 758
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HOTE 28 - TAX
281. T n profit on ordi v it
2023 2022
usD UsD
Corporate Income Tax 24,353,057 15.407 163
Municipal Business Tax 5.055.130 5641267
33.421.187 21.048 480
282 her not sh f the pr i
2023 2022
usD usp
VAT 1.641.509 1.905.888
Cther taxes 71,853 75855
1.713.382 1981, 753

NOTE 29 - PARENT UNDERTAKING

Since December 31, 2020, the Bank is a jointly capitalized subsidiary of Mitsubishi LIFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation by 100 %, which are under the holding company Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group (MUFG), which is
incarporated under the laws of Japan and whose regestened office 15 in Tokya

The anneal accounts of the Bank are meluded m the consalidated accounts of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation, with Registered Financial Institution number 33 at Kanio Local Finance Bureau Japan and

registened address 4-5, Marunouchi 1-Chorme, Chiyoda-Ku, Tokyo 100-8212, Japan

The consaldated accounts of the halding company Mitsubishi LFJ Financial Group (MUFG) may be obtained
from the head office at 7-1, Manunouchi 2-Chome, Chiyoda-Ku, Tokyo 100, Japan.
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NOTE 30 - DEPOSIT GUARANTEE SCHEME

The law related to the resolution, recrganisation and winding-up measures of credit institutions and certain
investment firms and on deposit guarantee and investor compensation schemes (the “Law’), ransposing into
Luxembourgish law the directive 201 4IS3EU establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit
institutions and investment firms and the directive 2014/45/EL related to deposit guarantese and investor
compensation schemes, was passed on December 18, 2015

The depasit guarantee scheme ("Fonds de garantie des dépdds Luxembourg” (FGOL)) and the investor
compensation system ("Sypstéme dindemmnisation das inveshizsews Luxembowrg” (SIIL)) cover eligible
deposits of each depositor up to an amount of ELIR 100.000 and investments up to an amount of EUR 20.000.
The Law also provides that deposits resulting from specific transactions or fulfilling a specific social or other
purpose are covered for an amount above EUR 100000 for a peried of 12 months.

Cradit insttutions contribute on an annual basis to the Luxembaurng banking resoluton fund ("Fands de
resclution Luxembourg” (FRL)), respectively to the FGDL.

The funded amount af the FRL shall reach by the end of 2024 at least 1% of covered deposits, as defined in
article 107(1) of the Law, of all authorized credit institutions in all participating Member States. This amount will
be collected during the years 2015 to 2024,

The target level of funding of the FGDL s set at 0,8% of covered deposits, as defined in article 170(1) of the
Law, of the relevant credit institutions and is to be reached by the end of 2018 through annual contributions.
This amaount will be callected during the vears 2016 to 2018, When the level of 0,8% is reached, the
Luxembourgish credit instituhons are to continue to contribute for 8 addibonal years n order to constitute an
additional safety buffer of 0.8% of covered deposits as defined in aricle 180(1) of the Law:

For the year end December 31, 2023, the Bank's annual contribution for FRL amounted to EUR 5.327 640

(U0 5.716.313), (2022 EUR 4115522 / USD 4,241.878),

.57
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NOTE 31 - AUDIT FEES

Within the framework of the EL) audit legislation and the mandatory audit firm rotation, the Bank has appointed

BDO Audit 5.4, starting from the fiscal year 2020,

The fees of the Auditar of the Bank are as follows (excluding VAT)

2023 2022

usD uso

Audit fees 250.097 241,485
Audit related fees 74,485 7. 237
Tax fees 30.055 26.691
554 638 335413

The other audit related fees provided of the Auditor included the following Service:

- |SAE 3402 Report for the period frarm January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023,

The tax fees in relation to the financial year included the following services:

« Preparation of tax returns;

- Preparabion of VAT returns;
- Assessment of CESOP reporting
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WOTE 32 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT DISCLOSURES

321, Erimary non-trading financial instrumments
As at December 31, 2023, the analysis of primary non-trading financial instruments [the Bank has no trading portfolio) by dass and residual maturty & the followang:

< 3 months = 3 months =1 year = §years Total
£1 year £ Syears
At carrying amount in USD UsD UsD UsD USD UsD
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Instrument class
Balances with the BCL (including BCL reserve) 2535 183,869 0 i i 2535193 869
Loans and advances to credit institutions 2.302.083.277 1414 630,785 4] o IH16. 724062
Loans and advances to customers 7905238 0 0 0 7.805.238
Shares and other vanable yield securities 0 a i} 2738 2738
Other Assets o a Q o o
Total Financial Assats 5,145,192 384 1.414 630,785 [1] 2738 &, 580 8§25 907
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Instrument class
Amounts oweed 1o credit institutions 2072468179 Q Q o 2072486179
Amounts owed to customers, 3815550822 0 i i 3815550822
Total Financial Liabilities 5.888.017.004 [1] [1] [1] 5.888.017.001
Of-balance sheel ilems disclased as contingencias
Guarantees B8, 703 a u] i BA.T703
Total Guarantees BB.703 a 1] 1] B8.703
.85
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
NOTES TO THE AGCOUNTS
Decernber 31, 2023 continued -

WOTE 32 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT DISCLOSURES

321, Erimary non-trading financial instrurments
As at December 31, 2022, the analysis of primary non-trading fnancial instruments (the Bank has no rading portfolio) by class and residual maturty is the followang:

£ 3 manths >3 months =1 year > § years Total
51 year = Syears
At carrying amount in USD UsD UsD UsD USD UsD
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Instrument class
Balances with the BCL (including BCL reserve) 38250986158 0 Qo o 3825 586 159
Loans and advances to credit institutions 2547 074208 1.337 522125 0 o 4 284 506 331
Loans and advances to custormers 41,005 068 0 0 o 41.005.003
Shares and other vanable yield securities 0 0 0 2646 2646
Other Assets o 0 u i
Total Financial Assats 6.814,156.363 1.33T 522 125 [1] 2,646 8.151.681.134
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Instrument class
Amounts oweed o credit insttubions 2.865,.200.741 0 o o 2685200741
Amounts oved to customerns. 4 852 402519 a 4] o 4 852 402515
Total Financial Liabilities T.54T 603,260 [1] [] [1] T.517.603.260
Off-balance shee! items disclosed as contingencies
Guaranteeas 75775 a u i 75775
Total Guarantees T5.775 a [1] 1] 75775
. 40.
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Decernber 31, 2023 continued -

322 i nontrading fin instrurmen

As at December 31, 2023, the analysis of OTC denvatve non-trading financial instruments (the Bank has no trading portfolio) by class and residual maturity is the following:

£ 3 months > 3 months >1year > 5years Tatal Fair value
£ 1 year £ 5 years

At notional payable amount in USD uso UsD usD uso uso Uso
FIMAMCIAL ASSETS
Instrument class
Foreign exchange fransachions
Foreards 1.732.480.231 0 4] 4] 1.732.480.231 12.817.030
Swaps. 1.588 457 158 0 1] 4] 1.588 457 158 516148
Total 3.321.917.389 0 o o 3.371.917.389 16.333.179
FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES
Instrument class
Foreign exchange ransaclions
Foremards 1.738.235.564 o a o 1.738.235.564 12.798.135
Swaps 1.253.785.427 o Q o 1.253.765 427 27.860.780
Total 2.992,000.991 ] o o 2.992.000.991 40.658.895

These amaunts include OTC dervative non-trading financial nstruments with a trade date before December 31, 2023 and a value date after December 37, 2023

T
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decernber 31, 2023 continued -

As at Decernber 31, 2022, the analysis of OTC denvative non-trading financial instrurents (the Bank has no frading portfolio) by class and residual raturty i the following

£ 3 months = 3 menths =1 year = 5 years Tatal Fair value
£ 1 year £ 5§ years

At notional payable amount in USD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD
FINAMCIAL ASSETS
Instrument class
Foreign exchange fransachions
Foreards 1.856.365.978 B02.914 a 4] 1.850. 566 802 5B6.671.005
Swaps. 276202 BB 0 Q 0 276, 202684 1.4600089
Total 2.175.568.662 B02.914 o 0 2.1TE1T1.576 60.131.084
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Instrument class
Foreign exchange transachions
Forwards 1.951.148.778 583.601 a ] 1.951.733.379 58,650,622
Swaps. 3420 880574 o 4] [1] 3420680874 B0.871.843
Total 5.380.810.752 583,601 0 o 5.361.354.353 135.522.468

These amounts include OTC dersative nonstrading financial instruments with a trade date before December 31, 2022 and a value date after December 31, 2022

.42.
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323 Infiormation on credit risk on primary non-trading financial instruments

As at December 31, 2023 the Bank is exposed to the following credit risk on primary non-trading financial

Instruments:
2023 2022
Carrying amount Carrying amount
inUsD In USD
FINANCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geographic location
Cash, balances with the BCL 2.935.1593.869 3825586 159
Of which BCL minimium réserve SB.TELN4 B9 447 866
EU meamber countries 2835103 869 3825986 159
Loans and advances to credit institutions 3.616.724.062 4,284 596.331
EU member couniries 335 748 200 276865 118
MNarth & Ceniral America 53432726 650 260 269
Asia 3041 245 689 2.933.830.603
Eurape, non-EU member counltries 172124 852 374.268.608
Ausgtralia and New Zealand 14172 405 39333735
Loans and advances to customers T.905.238 41,055,998
EU mevnber countries 10.844 26460119
Maorth & Ceniral America 7894383 9.368.347
Asra 11 5267 532
Eurape, non-EU member countries a a
Shares and other variable yield securities 2.738 2646
EU mwrber couniries 2738 2646
Other Assets 6530 534
EU mgmber couniries 690 534
Total 6.559.826.597 B8.151.681.668

-43-
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324, |Inf ion rivative non-trading financial i

As at December 31, 2023, the Bank is exposed to the follewding credit risk on dervatives non-trading financial
instruments:

2023 2023
Metienalipayable Risk equivakent
amount amount
inUsD in UsSD
FINANCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geographic location
Foreign exchange transactions
Forwards
EU mamber couniries 3.386.202 06,936
Amevica §1.465.147 1.102.918
Asgia 264 357 581 3211972
Europe, non-EU mamber counines 1.383.251.211 8.405.204
Swaps
Europe, non-EU member coundries 1.580 457 158 3516 149
Total 3.321.917.389 16.333.1739

_44.
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- continuad -

As at December 31, 2022, the Bank is exposed to the follewing credit risk on derivatives non-trading financial

instruments:

FIMANCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geographic location

Foreign exchange transactions

Forwards
EU mermber counines
America
Asia
Europe. non-ELf member counlries

Swaps
EU member counires

Total

MOTE 33 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

2022

Netienalipayatile

2176.171.576

Amount
inUsD

46212155
1432248397
210.566.686

1.490.941.654

276,202 684

2022
Risk equivalent
amount

inUsD

253 378
2129578
3.156.846

53.131.205

1.460.089

60,131,094

The Bank is not awane of any adjusting or non-adjusting event that would have occurred bebween

Decemiber 31, 2023 and the date when the present annual accounts were authonsed for issue.

MOTE 34 - CONTINGENCIES

As it may ocour in the normal course of business, the Bank is cccasionally subject to certain claims. The outcome

of Iitigations is mtrinsically uncertain. The likelirood of any material claim being found in favour of a claimant for the

Itigation currently in process is viewed as remote by the Management, accardingly, ne related provisions are made

in these annual accounts, Should a reliable evaluation of a past event be possible, the respective provision will be

rmarde.

L 45.
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December 31, 2023
- continued -

MOTE 35 - PFILLAR TWO
Pillar Two legislation has been enacted or substantively enacted in jurisdictions the Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group
{“thie Group”) operates, inclueding Luxembaurg, The Group B in scope of the enacted legislation. However, the
legislation was enacted close to the reporting date. Therefare, the Group, and the Company, are still in the process
of assessing the potential impact and exposures ta Pillar Two income taxes.
The Company 5 subject to the general tax regulations applicable to commercial companies in Luxembourg.

MOTE 36 - RETURMN OM ASSETS ("ROA™)
The Bank's return on assets is as follows:

2023 2022
usD usD
Total assets G.838.031.283 B211.118.424
Profit of the financial year 97 882738 62005340
Return on Assets 1.47% 0,77%
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UFJ S.A.
2024 30
010 4,478,297,929.37 691,583,549
020
030 2,851,039,967.06 440,286,102
040 1,627,257,962.31 251,297,447
050 42,284,567.44 6,530,006
060 42,284,567.44 6,530,006
070
080
090
096
097
098
099
100
120
130
141 2,656.80 410
142 2,656.80 410
143
144
181 2,148,527,982.75 331,797,176
182
183 2,148,527,982.75 331,797,176
240
250
260
270 444,289.56 68,612
280 444,289.56 68,612
290
300 2,701,880.07 417,251
310
320 2,701,880.07 417,251
330 153,721.56 23,739
340 14,721.56 2,273
350 139,000.00 21,466
360 25,100,198.81 3,876,224
370
380 6,697,513,226.36 1,034,296,968
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UFJ S.A.

2024 30

010 34,588,124.08 5,341,444

020 34,588,124.08 5,341,444

030

040

050

060

070

080

090

100

110 5,898,065,702.33 910,838,286

120 5,897,996,468.51 910,827,595

130

140 69,233.82 10,692

150

160

170

180

190

200

210

220

230

240 36,008,463.59 5,560,787

250 36,008,463.59 5,560,787

260

270

280 23,782,497.92 3,672,731

290

300 5,992,444,787.92 925,413,249
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UFJ S.A.

2024 30

010 187,117,965.90 28,896,627

020 187,117,965.90 28,896,627

030

040

050

060

070

080

090 0.00 0

095

100

110

120

122

124

320

330

340

350

360

128

130

140

150

155

165

170

180

190 645,381.57 99,666

200

210 463,212,940.12 71,533,974

220

230 463,212,940.12 71,533,974

240

250 54,092,150.85 8,353,451
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260

270

280

290

300 705,068,438.44 108,883,719

310 6,697,513,226.36 1,034,296,968
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UFJ S.A.

2024 30

010 162,081,876.28 25,030,304

020 18,337,025.24 2,831,787
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Independent auditor’s report

To Brown Brothers Harriman Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, solely in its capacity as trustee of
GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund, a sub-trust of MUGC GS Cayman Fund

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund (the “Sub-Trust”), a sub-trust of MUGC GS
Cayman Fund, as at 30 September 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards.

What we have audited
The Sub-Trust’s financial statements comprise:

e the statements of financial position as at 30 September 2024;
e the schedule of investments as at 30 September 2024;
e the statements of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the statements of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
units for the year then ended;

e the statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Sub-Trust in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Appendix
| - Advisory Fee Rates and Total Net Expense Ratios (Unaudited) (but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Sub-Trust’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Sub-Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sub-Trust’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Sub-Trust’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Sub-Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Sub-Trust in accordance
with the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cayman Islands

19 December 2024
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REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

To the Board of Directors,

Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) S.A.
287-289, Route d"Arlon

L-1150 Luxembourg

Report on the audit of the annual accounts
Opinion

We have audited the annual accounts of Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg)
S.A. (the ““Bank”?), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2023, and the profit and
loss account for the year then ended, and notes to the annual accounts, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying annual accounts give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Bank as at 31 December 2023, and of the results of its operations for the year
then ended in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the
preparation and presentation of the annual accounts.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the EU Regulation N° 537/2014, the Law of 23 July 2016
on the audit profession (““Law of 23 July 2016””) and with International Standards on Auditing
(““I1SAs””) as adopted for Luxembourg by the ““Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier””
(““CSSF>?). Our responsibilities under the EU Regulation No 537/2014 , the law of 23 July 2016
and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF are further described in the « Responsibilities of
the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” for the audit of the annual accounts» section of our report.
We are also independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants, including International Independence Standards, issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by
the CSSF together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the annual
accounts, and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the annual accounts of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of the audit of the annual accounts as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition - Commission receivable

Why the matter was considered to be
one of most significant in the audit

How the matter was addressed in the audit

We refer to Summary of significant
accounting policies - Note 2.13 -
Revenue Recognition and Note 22 on
Commission Receivable of the annual
accounts.

Commission receivable amounted to USD
120,905,992 as of 31 December 2023.
Commissions receivable mainly derive
from investment funds and global
custody operations.

The applicable rates per each type of
commission depend on the underlying
assets under custody and
administration, agreements and
services provided.

The recognition process of commission
receivable includes manual
intervention and it is considered to
be a key audit matter due to the
materiality of the related amounts,
combined with the volume of
transactions that are recorded.

Our audit focused on the following
procedures:

We held interviews with Finance and Billing
department and obtained an understanding of
the commission receivable recognition
process.

We assessed the design and implementation of

the internal controls surrounding commission

receivable and tested operating effectiveness
of the relevant related key controls.

We developed expectations for the aggregate
amounts per type of commission income and we
compared the expectations to the amounts
recorded by the Bank.

For a sample of the different types of
commissions:

We tested commission receivable by
performing independent recalculation of
the commissions for a sample of items.
This also included the reconciliation of
the fee terms to the underlying contracts
and the underlying basis to external
evidence;
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We agreed the receipt of accrued
commissions to payments subsequent year
end;

We included elements of
““unpredictability”” in the procedures
performed in response to the risk of
fraud by randomly selecting additional
items and by verifying appropriate
segregation of duties, as well as the
application of the ““4 eyes principle””,
within the fee and commission income
process.

Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information stated in the management report but does not include the annual accounts and our
report of the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” thereon.

Our opinion on the annual accounts does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the annual accounts, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the annual accounts or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report this fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the annual accounts

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual
accounts in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the
preparation and presentation of the annual accounts, and for such internal control as the Board
of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of annual accounts that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the annual accounts, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing Bank"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

Responsibilities of the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” for the audit of the annual accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual accounts as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a report of the
““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the EU Regulation
N° 537/2014, the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual
accounts.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the EU Regulation N° 537/2014, the Law dated 23 July 2016
and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual accounts, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our report of the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” to
the related disclosures in the annual accounts or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our report of the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé””. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual accounts, including
the disclosures, and whether the annual accounts represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate to them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the annual accounts of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our audit report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have been appointed as ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” by the Board of Directors on 14 March
2023 and the duration of our uninterrupted engagement, including previous renewals and
reappointments, is 4 years.

The management report is consistent with the annual accounts and has been prepared in accordance
with applicable legal requirements.

We confirm that the prohibited non-audit services referred to in the EU Regulation N° 537/2014
were not provided and that we remained independent of the Bank in conducting the audit.
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Luxembourg, 15 March 2024

BDO Audit
Cabinet de révision agréé
represented by

Patrick Terazzi
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